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FOREWORD 

This history goes back to THOMAS ANDREWS, whom we call the 

immigrant to designate him the first of our family to arrive in 

America. THOMAS ANDREWS was born in 1663 in England. He sailed 

to American in the Ship RICHARD Al-ID ELIZABETH, commanded by 

Captain Williams. The ship arrived "within the Capes 11 of Vir­

ginia on January 27, 1685. In an affidavit on file in the court 

records of Henrico County, Virginia, dated December 1, 1691, he ... ' 

stated his age on that date as 28 years. He was granted 396 

acres of land in Henrico County in 1704 for paying the passage 

of eight immigrants to the Colony. His will dated April 11, 1731, 

in Bristol Parish, Henrico County, Virginia, on file in the 

Henrico County records named each of his sons and daughters. This 

will led to the proof we had not found when the first edition of 

this work was printed in 1961, that RICHARD ANDREWS and his son, 

~JILLIAM ANDREWS of Bristol Parish, Virginia, were indeed the 

progenitors of our family line. 

Copies of the first edition of the family history were 

placed in the following libraries: 

The Dallas, Texas, Public Library, Genealogical Section. 

The Virginia State Library, Ricr.mcnd, Virginia. 

The National Society, Daughters of the American Rev­
olution, Washington, D. c. 

Copies of thi$ edition will be placed with each of these 

organizations, and with the Library of Congress, Washington, D. C. 

This will insure that for generations to come, the family record 

will be available for research. 
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The records show that each generation of the family made its 

contribution to the building of this country 'With its unparalleled 

way of life. It was not easy for any of them. Each generation was 

beset with problems as serious as any confronting us today. 

We owe mu.ch to those who preceeded us; realization of this 

truth should inspire us to better citizenship. No person could be 

other than uplifted by the knowledge that he comes of a line of 

patriotic citizens who lived with a sense of obligation to others, 

coped with all life's hazards, and having so lived, left a better 

world for those who followed them. 

4158 Beaver Brook Lane 
Dallas, Texas - 75229 
August, 1963. 

JAMES RAY ANDREWS 



EXPIANATION OF SYMBOLS 

Symbols are used in this record to identify individual members of 

the family, in direct line of succession., by generations. 

The generations beginning with William Andrews., the father of the 

first Varney Andrews, are designated by the symbols: (1), (2), 

and (3)., etc. The name of the first William Andrews will be pre­

ceded by the symbol (1). The name of the first Varney Andrews 

will be preceded by the symbol (2). This pattern will be followed 

throughout the history. Generations preceding William Andrews., 

when authenticated., will be identified by similar symbols., except 

that a minus sign will be used in front of the numbers. Thus 

Richard Andrews of Bristol Parish is identified by the symbol 

(-1). The next preceding generation will be identified by the 

symbol ( -2 ) • 

Other symbols used: 

b. born 

a. died 

m. married 

d. s. p. decessit sine prole - died without issue. 

CORM - County Office Recprds - Marriage. 

CORD - County Off ice Records - Deeds. 

III 





CHAPI'ER I 
THOMAS ANDREWS - IMMIGRANT 

The history of the Andrews family in America from whom the first 

(2) VARNEY ANDREWS descended began with the birth in 1663 in England of 

(-2) THOMAS ANDREWS - three hundred years before this is written in 1963. 

Additional research has confirmed our conclusions in Chapter I of 

Volume I of the family history, that (2) VARNEY ANDREt.,vS of Mecklenburg 

County, Virginia, THE VIBGINIA SOI.DIER OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION, de­

scended from (-1) RICHARD ANDREWS and his wife Mary of Bristol Parish, 

Virginia" This couple lived in a part of Bristol Parish which lay in 

Henrico Countyo They never lived in Prince George County as we previ­

ously believed~ This additional research goes further and establishes 

that the father of ( -1) RICHARD ANDREWS was (-2) THOMAS ANDRE,v,IS who 

lived in the Colony of Virginia from the date of his arrival in 1685 

until his death about 173le 

(-2) THOMAS ANDREl.:rS, the great grandfather of (2) VARNEY ANDREHS 

was born in 1663 in England. He arrived in the Colony of Virginia on 

January 27, 1685, ·aboard the ship RICHARD AND ELIZABETH, commanded by 

Captain Williams., He was 22 years of age when he left England and came 

to America. Available records indicate that no member of his family 

came wi. th him. These facts are established by HENRICO COUNTY COLONIAL 

RECORDS, 1 December, 1691, BOOK 5, PAGE 263. This record contains a 

deposition by (-2) THOMAS ANDREWS, in a suit recorded as BRIDGETT 

LUGROVE VS COL~ THOMAS CHAMBERIAIN, in which he stated his age in 1691 

as 28 years, and identified the name of the ship and its commanding 

officer on which he came to virginia. The record contained the depo­

sition of another passenger on the same ship stating the date of its 

arrival in Virginia. 
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In 1691, six years after his arrival, (-2) THOMAS ANDREWS was 

living in the Curles Neck area of Henrico County, about 15 miles 

southeast of the site on which the city of Richmond was founded forty 

years later. On October 20, 1704, he received a land grant of 396 

acres which was situated on the north bank of the Appomattox River for 

paying the passage from England of eight immigrants. (REF: Virginia 

Land Book 9, page 625, 1704.) No further record of (-2) THOMAS ANDRE1'1TS 

was found until his will, dated April 21, 1731 was probated and recorded 

in Volume 3, Deeds, Wills, 1727-1737, Henrico County. 

This will named four of his sons, one of whom was (-1) RICHARD 

ANDREHS, to whom he willed 11100 acres of land, more or less, on which 

he now liveth." VOLUME 21 of VIRGINIA COLONIAL ABSTRACTS, by Beverly 

Fleet, contains a record of persons who lived in that portion of Bristol 

Parish which lay in Henrico County., who paid quit rents to Sheriff' John 

Nash in 1736. Included in the list were four sons named in the will of 

(-2) THOMAS ANDREWS, and one of them was : 

(-1) RICHARD ANDR:filiJS, 1 levy, 102 acres• 

The name of (-1) RICHARD ANDREWS did not again appear in the 

Henrico County records after 1736. He reappeared in 1748 in that 

portion of Lunenburg County, south of the Meherrin River, which in 1764-

1765 became Mecklenburg County. (REF: SUNLIGHT ON THE SOUTH SIDE, by 

Langd~n c. Bell.) His name appeared each year in the tithable lists 

thru 1752. His land lay in the identical location where we found the 

Andrews plantation site in Mecklenburg County in 1960. The tithable 

lists from 1749 through 1764 carried the names of several other de­

scendants of (-2) THOMAS ANDREWS, all of whom owned adjoining acreage 

in this same area of Mecklenburg County ,;-.Jhich was then a part of 

Lunenburg County. The tithable lists for this area after the formation 

of Mecklenburg County in 1764-65 were not again available until 1781. 
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THE WILL OF ( .. ,2) THOMAS AJ\:-DREWS - 1663 ... 173~..:!. This will dated 

April 21, 1731 in Bristol Parish, Henrico County, Va., named four sons 

and three daughters.. The VESTRY BOOK AND BRISTOL PARISH REGISTER, 1720-

1736, pages 276 and 277, records the names of three of these sons, the 

names of their wives, and the names and birth dates of their children,. 

These two official records and the Chesterfield County(*) records of 

wills, establishes proof of the following sons and daughters of (-2) 

THOM.\S ANDREWS, the immigrant: 

As Thomas Andrews, (Jr.) b., do in Chesterfield Co., in ---
1754; ma,rried Jane ___ ,, Their children: 

1., Mary Andrews, b" 4-14-1723, Henrico Co. 

2. Elizabeth Andrews, b. 11-11-1726, Henrico Co. 

3,, Martha Andrews., bo 3~16r,1731, in Henrico Co., 

B. William Andrews, b,, _ in Henrico Co • ., d. in Dinwiddie 

County, Va., Married Avis Garnet. Their children: 

le Ephriam Andrews, b" 3-4-1721. 

2., George Andrews, b., 1-14-1723. 

3. Winnifred Andrews, b. 6-1-1724. 

4o Avis Andrews, b4 12-7-17270 

5. John Andrews, bft 7-7-1729~ 

6.., Luciana Andrews, bo 9~·7-173L. 

(*) Formed in 1749 out of part of Henrico south of the James River. 

c. Benjamin Andrews, on Henrico Co. quit rent lists in 1736. 

D. Donna Andrews, not traced~ 

E. Anne Andrews, married John Granger• 

F. Ame(y) Andrews, not tracedo 

G. John Andrews, on quit rent list in Henrico Co. in 1736. 

H. (1) RICF.ARD A!-IDREWS - See CHAPTER IA 





C HA.P.rER IA 

RICHARD ANDREWS 

(-1) RICHARD ANDREWS, be d. ca 1752 in Lunenburg Co., ---
Virginia.,. Married Mary • Their children: ----

l. Isham Andrews, b. 4-19-1721, d~ 1792 in Chesterfield 

County, Va.,. His son, Isham Andrews, Jr8, bo 1747, d., 

1845; served in War of American Revolution under Captain 

George Peagram and Col., Ralph Faullmer. (REF: REVOLUTION 

-• 
OF VA., SPECIAL REPORT, VA. STATE UBRARY, 1912.,) 

2. Frances Andrews, b,, 8-10~~17230 

3. Henry Andrews, be 2-13-1729.,. VIRGINL\ SOIDIER OF THE 

AMERICAN REVOLUTION. 

4. Phoebe Andrews., b,, 3-26-1732a 

5.- (1) WILLIAM ANDREWS, b. 5-13-1726, in Henrico Co., Va • ., 

d. ca 1772 in Mecklenburg Co., Va. Married Anne ., ---
Their children: 

a" (2) l,filliam Andrews, Jr., b. ___ do 1777, in 

Halifax County, Va. 

b., (2) Rowland Andrews.,. 

c. (2) Ephriam Andrews.,. 

d. (2) VARNEY ANDREWS, b. 1754, d. 1847. 

(See CHAPTER III for the story of (2) VARNEY ANDREWS.) 

The names of (-1) RICHARD ANDREWS, (1) WILLIAM ANDREWS., Ephriam 
;J 

Andrews and John Andrews., each a descendant of (-2) THO¥AS ANDREWS 

the immigrant., appeared in the tithable (tax) lists in the same area 

in the present Mecklenburg County, where the Andrews plantation, in 
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part., still remains. A portion of the home and several 

out buildings are extant. 

2. The only other William Andrews whose name appeared in 

this pel'iod in the public records or Mecklenburg County, 

was a. son of (-2) THOMA.S ANDREWS, the immigrant. He 

lived and died in Dinwiddie County, Va. In each such 

public record he was described as "of Dinwiddie County. 11 

On :May 14, 1770 in a deed in which he described himself 

as "of Dinwiddie" County he deeded 380 acres of land to 

11my son., Ephriam Andrews, for the better care of his 

family., 11 380 acres of land in Mecklenburg County. On 

December 9, 1771, he deeded 200 acres of land in Mecklen­

burg County, to John Andrews., describing himself as 11 of 

Dinwiddie County •11 A deed dated October 10, 1774, filed 

in Mecklenburg Co. Deed Book 4., page 335, deeded land in 

Mecklenburg County, to a loving "son Ephriam" by Avis 

Andrews, "widow and relict of William Andrews of Dinwiddie 

County. 11 

These records eliminate the possibility that this William Andrews "of 

Dinwiddie County" could have been the father of (2) VARNEY ANDREWS, of 

Mecklenburg County. 

Proof that the father of (2) VARNEY ANDREWS, of Mecklenburg County, 

was (l) WILL!.AM ANDREWS, b. 1726 in Bristol Parish, Henrico County, (the 

son of (-1) RICHARD AND Mary Andrews), is established as follows: 

1. Deed Book 1, page 472, Mecklenburg County, contains the record 

of a deed dated July 27, 1767 by 'Which (1) 'WIILIAM ANDREWS, 11 of Mecklen­

burg County" deeded 155 acres of land to 11my son Rowland Andrews. 11 
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2 • A Court Order in Mecklenburg County ORDER BOOK 4, page 77, 

1773-1777, named (2) VARNEY ANDREWS and (2) Ephriam Andremrs, minors, 

as the orphans of WIILIAM ANDREWS deceased. 

3. The will of (2) William Andrews (Jr.) who died in Halifax 

County, Va., in 1777, named (2) VARNEY ANDREWS of Mecklenburg County 

as his brother and named his "loving Mother Anne Andrews." This will 

also mentioned 11other brothers and sisters," but did not name any of 

them. 

It is obvious that there are things about the (2) VARNEY ANDREWS 

family which we do not know. We have never been able to learn whom he 

married, and whether he was married more than once. Some of this 

information may be contained in the thirty-seven boxes of records 

covering Chancery Suits, Judgements, and other court records which 

were sent to the Virginia State Library at Richmond several years ago. , 

These records have never been sorted, listed or indexed. l-Jhen they are 

available for examination we hope to learn more about this family. 



CHAPI'ER II 

WILLIAM ANDREWS 

(1) WILLIAM ANDRE'WS - b. de about 1772 in Mecklen--------
burg County, Virginia., Married Ann • -------
ISSUE: 

(2) Roland Andrews, b,. d~ ------ ------
(2) WILLIAM ANDREWS, JR., b. d. 1777 in Halifax ----

County, Virginia,, 

(2) Ephriam Andrews, b,, ______ d. ______ _ 

(2) VARNEY ANDREWS, b,, 1754 in Mecklenburg County, Va,., d., 1847 

in Mecklenburg County. Married Thweatt., ------
No record could be found of a will executed by (1) WILLIAM ANDREWS 

who died in Mecklenburg County about 1772. This has greatly complicated 

the matter of establishing a record of his family. After his death~ at 

the direction of the Mecklenburg County Court, his personal estate was 

appraised and sold, and an inventory of his personal effects was duly 

recorded in the court records. (Will Book 1, pages 131-132.) Nothing 

in the court records indicated how his land holdings were divided among 

his surviving heirs,, 

A deed dated 7-27-1767 executed by (1) William Andrews of Mecklen­

burg County transferred 155 acres of land to 11his son (2) Roland Andrews." 

The deed described this land as located on the Meherrin River in Mecklen­

burg County, and stated that (1) William Andrews had acquired the land 

by patent,, (Deed Book 1, pages 472-473.) A volume titled: "FIRST 

CENSUS OF THE UNITED STATES, 1790, Published by the U. S. Department of 

tabor" listed (2) Roland Andrews as head of a family in Mecklenburg 

County, Virginia. We f'ound no other information about this member of 

the family" 
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A will executed by (2) WII.J..IAM ANDREWS, 6-5-1776 in Halifax County, 

Virginia, established that he was a son of (l) William Andrews of Mecklen­

burg County and that he was a brother of (2) VARNEY ANDREWS 0r Mecklenburg 

County, Virginia, by the following clause: 

11a.nd as to what worldly estate it has pleased God to 

bestow ••••• I give, devise and bestow in the 

following manner: First I give to my loving brother 

Varn Andrews eighty acres of land lying in Mecklenburg 

County on the Meherrin River •••• to him and to his 

heirs. Also I give unto my loving Mother, Ann Andrews, 

all the remainder of my estate." 

A supplemental memorandum dated June 6, 1776, directed his executor, 

Moses Fountain: 

ntha.t in the case my brother Varn departs this life before 

he becomes of lawful age or have issue lawfully begotten, 

to sell the within devised land to the best advantage and 

make equal division of the money among my surviving 

brothers and sisters." 

No record we found disclosed the names of any of his sisters. This 

(2) William Andrews, Jr. of Halifax County died when a. young man, and 

without issue. Another clause in his will read:: 

ttAlso I give unto Miss Rachel Tindal, eldest daughter or 

Mr. Thomas Tindal, my bay mare." 

This will was recorded in the Halifax County, Virginia., Will Book 1, 

page 173, May 15, 1777. 

A Mecklenburg County Court order dated July 1773 read. as follows: 

"Ordered that the Church Wardens of St. James Parish do 

bind out Varney and Ephriam Andrews, orphans of William. 

Andrews, according to law:11 (Order Book 4, page 77 -1773-l77i) 



By this court order we establish Ephriam Anu:rews as a son of (l) Wj J limn 

Andrews and a brother or (2) Va:rney Andrews., (2) Roland Andrews and (2) 

William Andrews., Jr o 

At a Court held for Mecklenburg County the 9th day of August., 1773 

the foll0tdng order was issued; 

"Ordered that the Order of this Court for the binding out 

of Varney and Ephriam Andrews be reversed and of no 

effecto 11· (Order Book 4., pages 77-91 .. ) 

Nothing in any record indicated a reason for this reversal" 

However., what we have learned about (2) VARNEY ANDREWS leads us to be­

lieve that although only a youth., he was amply able to prevent some 

greedy relative or acquaintance from using him several years as a bond 

servant. 

The known facts relative to the lives of (2) Ephriam and (2) 

VARNEY ANDREWS., are contained in the next chapter. 



CHAPTER III 

(2) VARNEY ANDRE-TS, a son of (1) WILLIAM and ANN ANDREWS of Mecklen­

burg County, Va., was born in or after 1754. By family tradition he mar-

ried ___ Thweatt of Dinwiddie County, Va. No record was found of this 

marriage. Sons and daughters of (2) VARNEY ANDREWS were: 

(3) Elizabeth Andrews, b. ca 1782; m. 10-19-1804, Jeremiah Gee. 

(3) William Andrews, bo 1784. (See page 33 for family recorde) 

(3) Anderson Andrews, b. 1786, d. ca 1821; m. 11-28-1816, 

Sally Gee. A daughter was Elizabeth Andrews. On March 21, 

1821, (2) VARNEY ANDREW'S, her grandfather, was appointed 

guardian for Elizabeth Andrews. (Order Book 20, page 412.) 

(3) Nancy Andrews, b. 1786; m. 10-15-1808, Richard Tanner. 

(3) Martha Andrews, b. 10-27-1789; m. 1-24-1811, Jessee Bugg, 

b. 5-31-1785. ISSUE of this union: Augustine, b. 12-23-1814; 

Angelina, b. 2-9-1814; Mary J., b. 2-27-1816; Pamela, b. 

1-23-1818; Elizabeth A., b. 2-15-1820; Wm. H., bo 4-7-1822; 

Lucy_A., b~ 4-13-1824; Sarah AQ, B. 3-14-1830; John v., bft 

1-23-1828. (Ref: Jessee Bugg Family Bible.) 

(3) Jones Andrews~ 

(3) VARNEY ANDREWS, JR., b,. 10•7-1794. M. 9-10-1826 (5) M4.RY 

WILLIAMS MAXEY. (See Chapter IV for this family record.) 

(3) Dorothy Lucas Andrews, b. 12-5-1797. (See page 32 for this 

family record.) 

(3) Benjamin Andrews, b. 1802. 

(3) John Andrews, b. ca 1804. D. s. P. 

(3) Allen Thweatt Andrews, b. 1806. (See page 34 for family 

record. 
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In addition to public records cited in the foregoing schedule, 

the authorities for this history of the (2) VARNEY ANDREWS family in 

Mecklenburg County are: 

Mecklenburg County Will Book 16, 1843-1848; 1-Till Book 17, page 

98. Marriage Records, 1800 to 1835a 

National Archives and Records Section, GSA, Washington, Do C. -

File S 11992, VARNEY ANDRE!i"1S war service record,, The U., S,, 

Census Report of J.i,50, for Mecklenburg Co,,, Va., and for Monroe 

County, Kentucky. 

Although (3) Allen T. Andrews was given the whole of the tract of 

land on which the plantation building stood, together with the growing 

crops and equipment, all of the sons and daughters received money or 

chattels of equal value, in the will of (2) VARNEY ANDREWS which was 

probated in the Mecklenburg County Court., July 19, 1847" Because much 

of the personality and thinking of its maker is spelled out by its 

provisions, a transcript of this will is made a part of this record. 

(2) VARNEY ANDREWS lived in Mecklenburg, Lunenburg and Halifax 

Counties, Virginia all his life and died in Mecklenburg County at a 

great age. He and his brother (2) EPHRIAM were officially declared 

orphans of (1) 'WILLIAM ANDREWS by a Mecklenburg County Court Order in 

1773. The Court ordered them bound out as orphans by Church authorities. 

(Order Book 4, page 77.) On August 9, 1773, at another Court held in 

Meck~enburg County, it was "ordered that the Order of this Court for 

binding out Varney and Ephriam Andrews be reversed and of no effect,. 11 

(Order Book 4, page 91.) 

(2) VARNEY ANDREIJ'lS served three enlistments in the Revolutionary 

Army, two of them under General Nathaniel Green, whose harassing tac­

tics contributed so heavily to the final defeat of the British Army 

under Lord Cornwallis at Yorktown. His War record is fully set out in 
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a photo copy of records which we obtained from the files of the National 

Archives and Records Section, General Services Administration, Washington, 

D. C. This photo copy is made a part of the record. 

In an affidavit in the war record, in answer to the question: 

"Where and when were you born?", he replied: "In the County of Mecklen­

burg, and from accounts rendered me, in 1754.11 This date seems question­

able. In 1773, the year he was declared an orphan, he would have been 19 

years of age had he been born in 1754. He would not have been ordered 

bound out as an orphan at that age. 

In affidavits dated, one in July, 1833 and the other dated 

November 19, 1833, he described his Revolutionary War record in some de­

tail. This record was accepted and approved by the Commissioner of 

Pensions, Treasury Department. Excerptsfrom his story of war service 

follow: 

"I entered the service of the United states under the· 

following named officers and served as herein stated; entered the service 

under Capt. Peter Rogers, Lieut. Thea- and Egn. Shakelford, commanded by 

Col. Morgan, all ·or the County of Halifax, and enlisted voluntarily for a 

term of 12 months, and were called the Minute Men; to march at a minute's 

warning and to go anywhere when ordered. We were ordered to meet at the 

Halifax County Courthouse •. I did so some time in 1776 or 1777, the date 

nor the month or the day I cannot remember as I have no education and my 

officers gave no written discharges. Consequently I cannot recollect the 

time of making the service and being discharged. But so far I recollect 

that I was 12 moriths from home and served the terms of enlistment, 6 

months as a private and 6 as a drummer. We marched through the counties 

of Charlotte, Lunenburg, Dinwiddie and to Petersburg. We were stationed 

there a week and thence to Guinn•s Island on the James River, and there 

joined the main army of General Green; was stationed there about 3 months; 
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from thence to Barron Point on the Potomac River. Whilst at Guinn' s 

Island we were in several small skirmishes but no general engagements. 

We were stationed at Barron's Point about two or three months; from thence 

we were ordered to the long Islands of Holsten River against the Indians 

and were then stationed there until discharged." 

11After returning home to the County of Halifax, shortly after 

moved to the County of Lunenburg, Virginia, and was there drafted into 

the service some time in the summer of 1777 or 1778, the month nor the 

day not recollected, and marched under Capt. Anthony Street, Lieut. 

Hobson •••• went the most direct route to Petersburg and was there one 

month and discharged not in writing .. 11 

11In the year 1781, moved to Mecklenburg County, Virginia, 

and in the month of February was drafted into the service and marched 

under Captain Claiborn of Brunswick County, Lieut. Trower •••• marched 

from the County of Mecklenburg under command of Col. Munford, crossed 

the Roanoke River at Taylor1s Ferry. From thence the most direct route 

to Guilford Courthouse, North Carolina, and joined the main army under 

command of General Greene, and was in the battle at that place; after 

the battle pursued the enemy to Deep River and was there discharged, on 

a tour of service of two months. No discharge in writing was given that 

I recollect of •11 

The foregoing is the sketchy story of the Revolutionary War 

service of (2) Varney Andrews, Sr., told in his own words, reconstructed 

from memory fifty years after the events he described. His story was 

verified by affidavits from two of his lifelong friends, one of whom SB.:W 

him in the military service waiting on the sick and wounded. That his 

memory was excellent is attested by a historical marker erected by the 

Virginia Conservation and Development Commission in 1930 on the highway 

near Boydton in Mecklenburg County,, The wording on this marker could 
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well have been taken from the recorded words of Varney Andrews, Sr., as 

quoted herein. 

On August 8, 1957, the Rachel Caldwell Chapter, DAR, 

Greensboro, North Carolina, placed a bronze standing marker in the New 

Garden Cemetery, at Guilford College, N. c. This marker stands in the 

shade of the Revolutionary Oak, identifying it as having stood in the 

center of the New Garden Burying Ground, at the time of the first skirmish 

of the Battle of Guilford Court House, which took place March 15, 1781. 

This tree was still standing when the marker was placed in 1957. 

In April, 1960, we visited the cemetery for the purpose ot 

obtaining a picture of the tree for this record. We found that it had 

died and the great trunk was lying on the ground, where it had fallen. 

Its size was such that the bronze marker was still shaded by the prone 

trunk. We took a picture with Mary Croft Andrews standing by its side. 

The picture graphically portrays its great size and age. 

The New Garden Cemetery contains the bodies of both Colonial 

and British soldiers who fought and died in the battle. History records 

that 4,400 Colonials, composed largely of poorly equipped and untrained 

men, were attacked by 2,200 British veteran troops, fully armed and 

equipped. In two hours the battle was over and Lord Cornwallis issued 

a statement claiming a great victory. His losses were so great, however, 

that by his own admission he was forced to leave his unburied dead and 

wounded, and started a retreat which ended at Yorktown, Virginia. Seven 

months later, in October 1781, he was forced to surrender his entire 

forces. 

Historians agree that the British forced General Greene to 

withdraw his forces from this field of battle. They also agree that this 

withdrawal was good military strategy for the reason that General Greene 

was forced to commit his entire army to the action, leaving no reserves. 



There were moments during the battle when he believed that by bold action, 

he had a good chance to annihilate the British forces, but he had previ­

ously agreed with General Morgan that he would not risk having his forces 

destroyed. Had he gambled his entire force and lost, the war in the South 

would have been irrevocably lost~ 

By inflecting heavy losses on the enemy, and withdrawing his 

forces at the crucial moment, he can be said to have lost a battle but 

he set in motion events which ended in final victory for the United States 

forces., 

Units of American forces engaged at Guilford Courthouse, in­

cluded Maryland, Delaware and Virginia Continental troops, Col. Lee's 
II • 

Legion, 82 men; Kirkwoods Virginia Light Infantry, all regular troops. 

There were about 1000 militia from North Carolina, and 1200 Virginia 

Militia. Artillery consisted of only four six pounders. 

Of the total American force, only 600 Maryland and Delaware 

troops had had battle experience. The North Carolina and Virginia 

Militia were untried and none knew how they would stand up to battle. 

History records that the North Carolina Militia stood up to the ad­

vancing enemy and, having no bayonets, and requiring three minutes to 

reload in accordance with specific orders fired two rounds and retired 

in order, allowing the third defense line to take over. 

The Virginia Militia stood its ground until ove:rw-helmed by 

the well trained and heavily armed British. They only left the battle 

line when ordered to do so. 

A historian wrote: 

11 In this battle, on both sides the most admirable qualities 

were displayede Of the Americans, the first Maryland, Stevens Virginia 

Militia, and Kirkwood's Light Infantry bore the palmc 11 (Ref: The War 

of The Revolution, by Christopher Ward.) 



It should be a matter of great pride to his descendents that 

at this decisive moment of history Varney Andrews took part in an event 

which reflected great honor on every American who took part. 

On October 19, 1781, while General George Washington's army 

and their French allies looked on, British General Cornwallis' entire 

army marched out on a level plain at Yorktown, Virginia and, while their 

band played "The World is Upside Down" stacked their arms in unconditional 

surrendero The surrender was formally accomplished at two P.M. 

Lieuto CoJ.onel Tench Tilghman, Aid-de-Camp to General Washing­

ton, rode 200 miles with all possible speed to Philadelphia, arriving there 

at three A. M., October 22, to report the surrender to the Continental 

Congress. 

After official dispatches were received from General Washing­

ton., Congress went in a body on October 24th to the Lutheran Church for 

services of Thanksgiving. 

A broadside was printed and distributed to the citizens., 

authorizing them to "illuminate" their homes and places of business from 

six o'clock P. M.-until nine o'clock P. M • ., by way of celebration. De­

corum and harmony were earnestly recommended, and the people were urged 

to "discountenance" the least appearance of riot. There appeared to be 

little feeling of jubilation; instead the sentiment seemed to be reverent 

thanksgiving that peace had come. 

At Yorktown., Tarletonthe Britisher who had earned the title 

11butcher 11 for his atrocities perpetrated upon soldiers and civilians., 

openly feared reprisals on the day of surrender. He begged American 

officers for protection~ Not withstanding he was paroled along with 

other high ranking British., and traveled to New York,he was not molested 

by the citizens" 

A grateful nation has established the Guilford Courthouse 
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National ~'filitary Park, comprising about 148 acres of wooded, rolling 

countryside, which include the major portion of the battlefield and the 

traditional site of Guilford Courthouse and the county jail. In the park 

are 29 monuments and markers, including an equestrian statue of General 

Greene. The Park Museum, housed in a building which is an example of the 

finest early Colonial architecture, contains graphic colorful exhibits 

telling the story of the battle" These include examples of weapons used., 

pictorial devices, electric maps, a diorama and many fine portraits of 

the leaders. It is well worth a visite 

After his discharge from the military service for the last 

time, Varney returned to Mecklenburg County to the south bank of the 

Meherrin River where he owned land. Eighty acres at this site had been 

willed to him by his brother, (2) William Andrews, Jr., of Halifax County, 

upon his death in 1777e No records have been found showing how he came 

into possession of the other considerable acreage he accumulated during 

his lifetime. The land came to him by inheritance from his father, (1) 

William Andrews, Sr., or by patent for which no records were found, or 

by purchase. If by the latter method, deeds simply were not recorded, 

except in one instance which is described in the next paragrapho 

The courthouse records in Mecklenburg County contain a 

recorded deed dated August 16, 1816J where in (2) Varney Andrews purchased 

from (3) Benjamin Andrews, apparently his son, and Benjamin's wife, B~tsy 

Ann, ~01 acres of land fronting on the Meherrin River in Mecklenburg 

County, paying him $300.00 therefor,.. On March 20, 1818 he deeded this 

same land to Andrew Andrews, describing it as the 101 acres which he 

purchased from Benjamin Andrews.. He sold the land to Andrew Andrews for 

$1So.oo. Andrew Andrews is unidentified, but it seems quite probable 

that this transaction took place between three members of the same familyo 

It is quite apparent from reading his will, that throughout his life, 



Varney Andrews had assisted his large family in a material way on many 

occasions. 

Following the close of the Revolutionary War, the Andrews 

plantation on the south bank of the Meherrin River became a going concern. 

He reared a large family, some of whom with their descendents were to live 

in the home he built until about 1925. It is a tradition in the family in 

Virginia that (2) Varney Andrews married a member of the highly respected 

Thweatt family of Dinwiddie County, Virginia. This may never be es­

tablished firmly for the reason that most of the official county records 

of Dinwiddie County were destroyed prior to 1900 by a fire. In February 

1960, (6) Mrs. Ruby s. Montgomery, a direct descendent of (2) Varney 

Andrews, now living in South Hill, Virginia, in Mecklenburg County, wrote: 

'1We have no verification that a Varney Andrews, Sr., married a 

Thweatt from Dinwiddie County, however, older cousins from the 

Gilberta A. Warren family recall hearing that all their lives. 

Also, the name Thweatt has been carried down through the Andrews 

family to the third and fourth generation. Unfortunately no one 

that I contacted can locate a family bible or pictures. 11 

A volume titled: THE FIRST CENSUS OF THE U. S. (1790) published 

by United States Department of Commerce and Labor in 1908., was compiled 

from a list of Virginia taxpayers, 1782-1785. The 1790 census records 

were destroyed by the British soldiers when they invaded Washington 

during the war of 1812. 

The Mecklenburg County, Virginia list contained the following tabu­

lation: 

Head of Number Whites Number White Slaves 
Family 16 -yrs. or over Females 

Male 

(2) Varn Andrews 3 1 1 

Ephriam Andrews 5 15 
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John Andrews 5 1 

Rowlen Andrews 6 

This listing showed the makeup of the Varn Andrews family at some 

date between 1782 and 1785, very soon after he had returned from the 

Revolutionary War service. The three white males were most likely him­

self and two brothers, one of whom was probably (2) Ephriamo Apparently 

he had married since the family listing included one white female over 16 

years of age., 

In any event, the listing shows plainly that at least the beginning 

of the establishment of the Andrews plantation on the South bank of the 

Meherrin River was under way o It was to continue in operation by members 

of the Andrews line until 1925_,, one hundred forty years lc:~-01"" 

Ephriam and John Andrews were the sons of William and Avis Andrews 

of Henrico Comty,., Rowlen and Varney Andre-us Fere 

closely connected with all the other Andrews living in the County. A­

cross the Meherrin River in Lunenburg County lived several members of 

the Andrews family. That there was close kinship between those members 

of the family living in Mecklenburg County with those living in Lunenburg 

County cannot be doubted. Deeds, wills and marriage records in each 

county contained names as witnesses, principals or sureties of members 

of the families living across the river in the other counties. 

There are no records to show when the main house on the plantation 

was·built or by whomo A close examination of the foundation and other 

features of the structure indicate that it may have been built prior to 

1800. A prime consideration in the selection of land for a plantation 

operation was the availability of a stream or body of water which would 

provide a means of transportation,, When (2) Varney Andrews was born in 

the mid-seventeen hundreds, Mecklenburg County was a wilderness which 

had seen its first settlement of white people about twenty years previ-
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ously. Of course there were no roads. Travel was by foot, on horseback 

or by boat. And there were few horses. Every deed of record by any 

member of the Andrews family from 1760 to 1800, placed the land bordering 

on the Meherrin River, in either Lunenburg or Mecklenburg County. The 

portion of the main house, which still stands, is on a high bluff, about 

two hundred yards from the river, high enough to be safe during overflows, 

and close enough for easy access with heavy loads. 

The plantation was basically a tobacco producing unit. Tobacco was 

the bone and sinew of Virginia economy at this timeo The farm has con­

tinued to produce tobacco to the year 19600 The present owner of the 200 

acre tract on which the house and family burial plot rest, Mr. Sam M. 

Warren, informed me that he had acquired the plot in recent years in order 

to utilize the allotment of tobacco acreage which goes with the land. The 

production of tobacco is under close control by the Federal Government, 

and only acreage allotted to tobacco production may be utilized for that 

purpose by the land ovmer. 

However, tobacco was never from the beginning the only crop. t..Jhile 

tobacco was the principal crop and provided the only available medium of 

exchange, other crops were necessaryo Food consumed by the plantation 

people had to be produced from the land. Flax was grown for the pro­

duction at the plantation of linens= Sheep were grown for wool for cloth­

ing, as well as for food. Corn, wheat, rye and other small grains were 

produced for human and animal food. Wild game abounded in the area until 

well after the close of the Revolutionary War of 1781~ (Virginia Caval­

cade, Winter, 1959, published by the Virginia State Library.) Wild 

turkey was abundant - so numerous in the Colonial period that some birds 

sold for as little as six cents (barter) each. Ducks and geese came in 

such numbers as to darken the skies. Deer were abundant. Fur-bearing 

animals were plentiful~ 
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There can be no doubt that the abundance of wild game contributed 

much to the comfort of the early settlers by supplying food and pelts, 

the latter to be used for barter. 

To succeed as they did the Andrews family had to be farmers, 

blacksmiths, woodsmen, spinners and weavers. They had to know something 

of animal husbandry, they had to be carpenters, cabinet makers, wheel 

wrights, leather workers, and someone in the family had to be an expert 

rifle shot. Probably all the male members of the family were. They had 

to depend upon their own resources when illness came. Indeed, a sombre 

picture emerges from the frequency with which wills were drawn and then 

probated in the courts within a few months, following the death of the 

makers. This leads to the conclusion that when certain forms of illness 

struck, "lung fever" as an example, approaching death was accepted as a 

fact. 

(2) Varney lived in and operated this planation, in the later years 

with the help of his son (3) Allen Thweatt Andrews, until his death some 

time prior to July 19, 1847. His will was probated on that date by the 

Mecklenburg County Court. 

His son (3) Allen Thweatt Andrews lived with him or in another home 

on the plantation during his last years, and took care of him in his old 

age. A codicil to his will contains a special bequest to 11:My son, Allen 

T. Andrews in consideration of the attention to me by him." 

(3) Allen T. Andrews, with his family lived in the main house until 

his death in 1868. Descendents of that family still live in Mecklenburg 

County. Another section of this record contains the known record of the 

descendants of the Allen T. Andrews family. 

We obtained from the Library of Congress, Washington, D. c. a 

photostat of a negative of a Map of Mecklenburg County, Va., dated Sep­

tember, 1864, prepared at the direction of Confederate Engineer Bureau 
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in Richmond, Va., General J. F. Gilmer, Chief Engineer. This is a detail 

map of the county, prepared at the direction of General Robert E. Lee. 

The map designates the Allen Andrews plantation in the identical location 

which we visited in 1959 and 1960. 

The main house still stands, with some seven or eight minor service 

buildings nearby. The place, no longer a going unit, is abandoned and 

neglected, but the main house still resists the ravages of time and the 

elements. 

Nearby, about one hundred yards in the direction of the Meherrin 

River, is the family burial plot, where it is known members of four and 

perhaps five generations of the family are buried. We counted eighteen 

headstones and it was apparent others had fallen or been displaced. 

Only two of the stones bore identification data. These were over the 

graves of the last residents, (4) William O. Andrews and his wife, Mary 

Lucas (Binford) Andrews. 

(6) ¥~s. Ruby Saunders Montgomery of South Hill, Virginia, a direct 

descendent of (2) Varney Andrews, Sr., wrote us regarding the burial -plot 

at the Andrews home: 

It seems almost impossible to identify all the unmarked 

graves there, however, we are quite certain of the following: 

(2) Varney Andrews, Sr., and his wife. 

(3) Allen Thweatt Andrews and his wife. 

(5) Mrs. Delia Andrews Waller, age 40, daughter of 

(4) William O,, Andrews. 

(5) Mattie Thweatt Andrews, age 20, daughter of 

(4) William o. Andrews. 

A small child of (4) William o. Andrews. 

Two babies of (5) Tom Vo Andrews, who was a son of 

(4) William O.., Andrews o 



We were informed in 1959 by Mr. Jim E. Warren, son of the present 

owner of the property, that a number of graves existed outside the fenced 

area, but none could be located in the dense growth which·covered the 

ground. The burial plot was surrounded by an iron fence, obviously gener­

ations old, but in good repair. The owner of the land continued to re­

spect the burial plot, leaving it unmolested. 

THE WILL OF (2) VARNEY ANDREWS., SR. This will written August 27, 

1839 and proved in the Mecklenburg County Court July 19, 1847, reveals so 

much of the character of its maker that the family record would be incom­

plete without it. The will in its entirety follows. (Ref: Mecklenburg 

County Will Book 16, 1843-1848.) 

11 In the name of God, Amen, I, Varney Andrews of the County 

of Mecklenburg and State of Virginia, do hereby constitute 

and make this my last will and Testament in manner and form 

as follows, to wit: It is my will and desire after my death 

that my body should be buried in a decent manner, my soul 

I recommend to God who gave it. 

Item. I charge my daughter Elizabeth Gee for what I have 

let her have to stand as a part of her legacy in the di• 

vision of my estate after my death (that is) 

One negro girl named Mary worth Three Hundred Dollars 

Other property in the amount of ninety dollars 

Cash One hundred twenty five dollars 

Negro Girl Clary worth one hundred dollars 

Item. I charge my daughter Nancy Tanner for what I have 

let her have to stand as a part of her legacy in the di-

vision of my estate after my death (that is) 

90.00 

12$.00 

100.00 

One Negro girl named Lidy worth two hundred forty dollars 240.00 

Other property to the amount of one hundred twenty dollars 120.00 



One Negro woman worth one hundred twenty dollars 

Received of my son John's estate 

Item. I charge my daughter Martha Bugg for what I have 

let her have to stand as a part of her legacy in the di-

vision of rrry estate after my death (that is) 

120.00 

291.33 

One negro girl named Sinthy worth two hundred twenty dollars 220.00 

Other property to the amount of one hundred ten dollars 110.00 

One negro woman named Ritta worth one hundred and 

seventy dollars 

Received of my son John's estate 

Item. I charge my son William Andrews for what I have 

let him have to stand as a part of his legacy in the di• 

vision of my estate after my death (that is) 

One Negro boy named Phillip worth three hundred dollars 

Cash one hundred dollars 

Other property to the amount of one hundred and twenty 

dollars 

One negro girl named Ellen worth one hundred twenty 

dollars 

Received of my son John's estate 

Item. I charge rrry son Jones Andrews for what I have let 

him have to stand as a part of his legacy in the division 

of my estate after my death (that is) 

One negro boy named Nelson worth three hundred dollars 

Cash one hundred five dollars 

Other property to the amount of eighty dollars 

Two negro children worth one hundred and fifty dollars 

Received of my son John's estate 

Item. I charge my son Varney Andrews for what I have 
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271.33 

30d.oo 

100.00 

120.00 

120.00 

131.,33 

300.00 

105.00 

ao.oo 
150.00 

135,,33 



let him have to stand as a part of his legacy on the di• 

vision of my estate after my death (that is) 

One negro girl named Tisha worth two hundred dollars 

One horse worth th:trty dollars 

One negro girl named Lucinda worth one hundred twenty 

dollars 

One small wagon worth fifty dollars 

Received of my son John1s estate 

Item. I charge my daughter Dorothy L. Hailey for what 

I have let her have to stand as part of her legacy in 

the division of my estate after my death (that is) 

One negro girl Parthena worth two hundred dollars 

Other property to the amount of ninety dollars 

Land deeded, four hundred dollars 

Cash forty five dollars 

One negro boy Fill worth one hundred ten dollars 

Item. I charge my son Benjamin Andrews for what I 

have let him have to stand as a part of his legacy 

in the division of my estate after my death (that is) 

One mare and other articles worth forty three dollars 

Two negroes Dorcas and Sal each worth two hundred 

dollars 

. Cash twenty dollars 

Cash two hundred fifty dollars 

Cash paid son Allen for part of land per receipt 

Received of my son John's estate 

Item. I charge my son Allen T. Andrews for what I 

have let him have to stand as a part of his legacy 

in the division of my estate after my death (that is) 

200.00 

30.00 

120.00 

5<).oo 

371.33 

200.00 

90.00 

400.00 

45.00 

110.00 

43.00 

400.00 

20.00 

250.00 

10.00 

58.33 



One negro boy named Phill worth two hundred dollars 

One horse worth twenty five dollars 

One negro boy worth one hundred dollars (Lewis) 

One negro girl Jinny worth seventy five dollars 

One bed and furniture and other property worth forty 

dollars 

I also give and bequeath to my son Allen T • Andrews the 

whole of my tract of land whereon I now live for his 

full portion of my Estate together with what I have 

above charged him with to him and his heirs forevero 

200.,00 

100.,00 

75.,00 

40.,00 

Item. It is my will and desire that my executors hereafter to be 

named do sell all my property not charged or willed away, that is 

negroes, household and kitchen furniture together with the crop 

that may be on hand at my death. Without any appraisement on any 

of my property it is my will that Jesse and Tisha, his wife, be 

sold together or put out together, as the case may be, they being 

old and infirme It is also my will and desire that my negroes be 

bought by my children and that no other person has a right to bid 

for them, and that my executors shall give reasonable notice to 

all my children concerning the manner in which my negroes are to 

be sold so that each of them may be present at the sale., If they 

think proper my executors have the right to demand of such of my 

children that may buy any of my negroes, land or bonds to be taken 

by them in such a manner as may enable them to pay off each lega­

tee their full proportion of my Estate. So soon as such sale may 

be made in bonds so that each of them receiving their portion in 

bonds, shall discharge my executors from all responsibilities to 

them so that each legatee shall collect their own moneye It is 

my will and desire that my just debts all be paid and then my 
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eight children., Elizabeth., Nancy., Martha., William., Jones., Varney, 

Dorothy and Benjamin be all made equal in amounts with what they 

are charged with. Then if any over, be equally divided amongst 

the said eight to be theirs and the heirs forever. 

I appoint my son Allen T. Andrews and my next friend, Samuel Stone., 

my Executors without being bound to give surety to this my last 

Will and Testament by me made revoking all other wills before made 

by me. In witness whereof I have set my hand and seal this twenty 

seventh day of August in the year of our Lord One Thousand eight 

Hundred and thirty nine. 

Interlined before assigned 

Witness 

Lewis Jones 

John Smith 

Isaac Holmes 

His 
Varney X Andrews 

Mark 

Codicil to this my last will and Testament for 

and in consideration of the attention to me by my son., Allen T. 

Andrews, I give to him and his heirs forever the negro man Davy 

which he has now in possession extra of what I have before willed 

him, as witness my hand and seal this first day of August, 1844. 

Witness 

· Thomas E. Reekes 

G. w. Jones 

His 
Varney X Andrews 

Mark 

At a Court held for P.ecklenburg County at the 

Courthouse thereof on the 19th day of July, 1847, the la.st will 

and testament of Varney Andrews was produced in Court and proved 

by the oaths of Lewis Jones, John Smith and Isaac Holmes., sub-



scribing witnesses thereto and ordered to be recorded~ And the 

Codicil was also p~oved in Court and party proved by the oath of 

G~ W~ Jones a subscribing witness thereto and ordered to be certi­

fiedn At another court held for said County on the 10th day of 

August, 1847, the same was again produced in Court and the Codicil 

was fully p~oved by the oath of Themas Ee Reekes, a subscribing 

witness thereto, which will and codicil are ordered to be recorded," 

When this will was w ... ~itten., (2) Varney Andrews, Sr., was, according 

to available records, 85 years old~ This age factor alone indicates that 

he was a man of unusual strength in every way a man can be strong. In an 

age when the average life span of a man was less than 30 years, he lived 

more than three times as long~ This not only required physical vigoro 

To survive that long and prosper in the environment in which he spent his 

life required the constant exercise of a determined spirit, sound 

judgement and superior intelligencea 

The wording and provisions of the will reveal that he gave each of 

his sons and daughters material assistance during his lifetime, ap­

parently at the time of their marriage, or their departure from home 

when they struck out for themselves~ A careful accounting was kept of 

the value of goods, chattels or money each received, and in the final 

accounting after his death, specific provisions were made that each would 

in the end receive an equal portion. 

His first born son, (3) John Andrews according to family tradition, 

died when a young man, as the result of an accident caused by his own 

careless use of a sharp knife in his shoe making shop. No details are 

of recordo He left a sizable estate, but no will was recorded. His 

estate was liquidated and at least a portion was divided among certain 

of his brothers and sisterso The total cash thus divided was $1,258.98, 

a sizable sum at that time~ 
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Varney Andrews was beyond doubt blessed with unusual strength of 

character, a strong will and great determination. Every fact of his 

life which can be established from the meagre records available, support 

this conclusion. Orphaned at an age so young that he was never taught 

to read and write, he must have been self sustaining when a mere child. 

He not only sustained himself, but his younger brother, Ephriam, probably 

becar.e his responsibility. If so, he saw that Ephriam received 

some formal education, as his autographed signature in excellent script 

appeared on a Revolutionary War document dated 1807. 

Another facet of the personality of Varney Andrews is clearly re­

vealed by the strict provisions in his will for the humanitarian treatment 

of his colored slaves, and particularly his concern for th:J comfort of 

two of them, Jesse and Tisha, 11 they being old and infirm and it is my will 

that they shall be sold or put out together as the case may beo 11 This 

concern for those less fortunate than himself, was likewise manifested by 

his son, Varney Jr., years later. In 1959 we found in the attic of a home 

at Savoy, Texas, the family bible of Varney Andrews, Jr. and Mary Williams 

Maxey. In this bible, were quite a number of photographs of men and 

women, only one of whom could be identified by any living person. This 

one person, an elderly colored woman, was identified by the name 11Tisha11 

written on the back of the photograph. It was obvious that this was the 

servant girl 11Tisha11 who was named in the will of the first Varney Andrews 

as having been given to his son Varney, presumably at the time of his 

marriage in 1826. It is a tribute to the humanitarian qualities of Varney 

and Mary Williams Andrews that Tisha grew in their love and esteem from 

a lowly slave girl to a family friend worthy of a place in the family 

bible. 

(2) EPHRIAM ANDREWS, brother of the first (2) Varney Andrews, en­

listed for the duration of the Revolutionary War, April 24, 1781, in Col. 
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Lee's Legion of the Virginia Line, and was discharged November 15, 1783. 

(Ref: Gen. Serv. Adm., National Archives, File DLUT 415-100.) 

He ,;-rns in County Newberry:, s.c. in 1787., He married Frances Leonard and 

they-deeded land in Mecklenburg Co., Va., 1--l6-1J87ff (Ref: CORD Book 7, 

page 168,.) Another Ephriam Andrews, born in Prince George County, 2-4-

1721, the son of William and Avis Andrews, lived many years in Mecklenburg 

County. His daughter Ann married Benjamin Bugg 9-13-1785 in Mecklenburg 

County. The exact relationship between this Ephriam and (2) Varney and 

his brother (2) Ephriam cannot be determined. That they were closely re­

lated cannot be in doubt, because the public records clearly show that 

this Ephriam and Varney•s father were born in the same vicinjty in Prince 

George County and were closely associated in Lunenburg and Mecklenburg 

Counties. (Chapter I, Reve (1963) clarifies the relationship.) 

Several families living in Mecklenburg and Lunenburg Counties during 

the period from 1770 to 1820 were closely related by blood or marriage to 

the Varney Andrews family. These included: 

MARK ANDREWS, and his son JOHN ANDREWS, of Lunenburg County. John 

Andrews, born 4-4-;t.764 in Dinwiddie County, Virginia, lived in Lunenburg 

County in 1782. He served as a substitute for his father and another en­

listment in his own right in the Revolutionary Army of the u. s. He lived 

in Halifax County, Virginia, and then in Williamson County, Tennessee, 

where both he and his father Mark Andrews died. (Ref: GSA, National 

Archives, file S-2908) Lunenburg County Will Book 3, page 210, records the 

the marriage 4-1.3-1785 of John Andrews to Rebecca Malone. He was carried 

on the u. s. Pension Rolls for his Revolutionary War Services. 

On July 19, 1797, (2) Varney Andrews was security on the marriage 

bond of Elizabeth Andrews, daughter of George Andrews, who married Neavil 

Gee in Mecklenburg County. The marriage of Jeremiah Gee to Elizabeth 

Andrews, daughter of (2) Varney Andrews on ll-19-1804, has been previously 
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mentioned in this record. 

Following his death in 1868, the Widow of ( 3) Allen T., Andrews:, 

Varney' s son, married lewis Gee of Lunenburg County. Members of the Gee 

family went to Monroe County, Kentucky and the name of one of them, Jones 

Gee, a Justice of the Peace of Monroe County, was affixed to a War of 1812 

service document of Varney Andrews, Jr., September 28, 18500 The Gee 

family later came to Texas and Grayson County and I knew one of them in 

Amarillo, and was made aware that our families were relatede 

(3) DOROTHY LUCAS ANDREWS - Available information relative to this 

daughter of the first Varney Andrews was obtained from the family record 

sheet from the Meredith Hailey family bible, currently in possession of 

Emory and (6) Katherine Christian, Whitewright, Texas. The record was as 

follows: 

* (3) Dorothy Lucas Andrews, b. 12-5-1797, d. 1-4-1863., 

Married 3-18-1820 to Meredith Hailey, b. 1-8-1798, 

d. 10-20-1854. 

Issue: 

(4) Varney Philip Hailey, b .. 11-18-1820 

(4) Martha Caroline Hailey, b. 9-9-1822 

(4) Thomas Benjamin Hailey, b. 9-23-1824 

* (4) Emily Lucas Hailey, be 2-27-1826. Married 12-13-1842 

to William o. King, b. 5-18-1816, d. 6-18-1888. 

Issue:. 

(5) Wm. M. King, b. 4-26-1843, d. 7-17-1885. Married to 

Paradine Eatherly. 

Issue: 

(6) Robt. Nathan King, b. 8-11-1866 

(6) Ann Elizabeth King, b. 9-8-1867 

(6) Walter Meredith King, b. 3-19-1871 
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(6) James Hugh King, b. 8-7-1873 

(6) Lucas Almeda King, b. 3-31-1877 

(5) Ann Elizabeth King, b. 1-8-1846, d. 12-26-1862 

* (5) ROBERT H. KING, b. 3-14-1852, d. 1-15-1897. Married 

➔} LULU BELIE KING, b. 9-11-1864, d. 5-24-1943. 

* (5) LULU BELLE KING was a great-granddaughter of the first (2) 

Varney Andrews through his son (3) Varney Andrews, Jr., and the latter's 

daughter, (4) Mary Elizabeth Andrews. 

(5) ROBERT H. KING, whom (5) Lulu Belle King married, was a 

great grandson of the first (2) Varney Andrews through his daughter (3) 

Dorothy Lucas Andrews who married Meredith Hailey. 

The history of the Lulu Belle and Robert Hailey King family is 

told in detail in the chapter containing the history of the (3) VARNEY 

ANDREWS, JR., family, one of whcm was (4) Mary Elizabeth (Andrews) King, 

the mother of (5) Lulu Belle King. 

The Meredith Hailey family was still living in Mecklenburg County 

in 1833., An affadavit executed by Meredith Hailey was part of the Revo­

lutionary War ser~ce record of (2) Varney Andrews. The affadavi t was 

executed in Mecklenburg County, July 31, 1833, and contained the statement 

that Meredith Hailey was a resident of Mecklenburg County. 

(3) WILLIAM ANDREWS - This son of (2) Varney Andrews, Sr., :moved 

from Mecklenburg County, Virginia to Kentucky sometime prior to 1820. He 

was listed in the 1850 u. s. Census Report for Monroe County, Kentucky. 

His age was stated as 66 and his wife Elizabeth ts age was 60. Both stated 

the State of their birth was Virginia. 

Their son (4) Varney F. Andrews, whose name appeared in a Mecklen­

burg County Court document 4-2-1849, (Will Book 17, Page 98) was listed 

in the same Monroe County Census Report. His age was stated as 30 years, 

and his wife Catherine's 26. Their daughter Mary was 6 years of ageo 
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All were born in Kentucky. This establishes that William Andrews and his 

wife Elizabeth went from Virginia to Kentucky prior to 1820. In all 

probability they went to Kentucky with ( 3) Varney Andrews, Jr., in 1818,, 

No other information relative to this family was available. 

(3) ALLEN THWEATT ANDRRWS - The youngest son of (2) Varney Andrews, 

Sr• He was born 1n Mecklenburg County in 1806 and died there in 1868. 

(Ref: u. s. Census of 1850, and Will Book 22, page 160, Mecklenburg County, 

Virginia.) He married Martha Jane Oslin, who was born in 1828. 

It seems probable that Martha Jane Oslin was his second wife. The 

u. s. Census Report of 1850 listed his age as 44 and her age at 22. The 

same report listed his son (4) William Oslin Andrews as 15 years of age, 

a daughter (4) Virginia, age 10, and a son (4) Varney; age 9. Obviously 

at 22 years of age, Martha Jane Oslin could not have been their mothera 

We know that Martha Jane Oslin Andrews married Lewis Gee and lived in 

another county, after the death of Allen T. Andrews at age 62; that (3) 

Allen T. Andrews anticipated her remarriage, and made provisions in his 

will accordingly. All this indicates that she was considerably younger 

than her husband, and supportsthe theory that she was his second wife. 

The sons and daughters of Allen Thweatt Andrews were: 

(4) William Oslin Andrews, b. 5-15-1835, de 12-19-1926. 

(4) Martha Indiana Andrews, b. 1--23-1843, d. 7-7-1909. 

(4) Gilberta Susan Andrews, b. d. 

(4) Emma Jane Andrews, b. d. 

(4) John A. Andrews, b. d. 

(4) Virginia Thweatt Andrews, b. d. 

(4) Varney o. Andrews, b. d. 

Available information relative to the descendents of this family 

follow-a. 

(4) WILLIAM OSLIN ANDREWS - Married Mary Lucas Binford, 
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be 8-25-1837, d. 8-2-1917. Married 12-14-1859. 

ISSUE: 

(5) Delia Andrews Wall, d. at 40 years of age. 

(5) Martha Thweatt Andrews, d. at 20 years of age. 

(5) Tom v. Andrews 

(5) Mrs. w. s. Smith 

( 5) William Ed.ward Andrews 

(5) Mary Lou Andrews Holmes, (Mrs. D.S. Holmes,) 

(See Family Histories· Pages ,37· and 38..) 

(Reft Will of Wm. o. Andrews, Will Book 29, page 183, Mecklenburg 

County, Virginia, and letters from Mrs. Ruby Saunders Montgomery, of 

South Hill, Virginia.) 

(4) William o. Andrews and Mary Lucas Binford Andrews were buried 

in the family burial plot at the Andrews plantation in Mecklenburg County. 

Headstones over their graves told the dates of their births and deaths. 

(4) William O. Andrews was a sergeant in the Army of the CSA, and 

escaped capture by Union forces one day before Lee•s surrender, by 

ambushing and unho;rsing (and not injuring) his pursuer. By this strate ... 

gy he became one of the very few Confederate soldiers who did not have 

to walk to their homes after the surrender. 

(4) MARTHA INDIANA ANDREWS - Married James Archer Saunders. 

b. 4-30-1842, d. 9-7-1914, married 12-19-1865. 

ISSUE: 

(5) Gilbert Asa Saunders, b. 12-25-1872, d. 2-21-1934. 

Married 12-26-1893 to Lucy Baxter Dix, b. 11-30-1875, 

d. 6-2-1939, daughter of Mary Francis Ragsdale and 

John C. Dix. Gilbert Asa Saunders and Lucy Saunders 

had a daughter: 



(6) Ruby Saunders, b~ 4-29-1900; m. 4-26-1924, Harry 

Sheffie Montgomery, b. 9-22-1889. ISSUE: 

(7) Harry Sheffie Montgomery, Jr., b. 10-13-1926; 

graduate of University of Va. Law Degree 1951. 

Served in u.s. Navy, in Horld War II. Elected 

Mayor of South Hill, Va., 1963e 

(5) Robert Saunders, m. Showalter. ----
(5) Luther Saunders, m. Emma Ozlin!t They had (6) Thomas 

Archer Saunders, an M.D. living in South Hill, Va.,, 1963. 

(5) James Sidney Saunders, b,,_ , d. m. Della Smit,h,, --- ---
ISSUE: 

(6) Clyde Saunders, b. 3-17-1895, d. 3-21-1955. 

ISSUE: 

(7) Clyde Saunders, Jr., b. 7-24-1926, in Peking, 

China, where his father was representative of the 

British-American Tobacco Co, Clyde Saunders, Jr., 

married Mildred Ford 10-28-1950, who was born at 

Dallas, Texas 7-7-1928. ISSUE: 

(8) Kathleen Saunders, b. 11-9-1951 at Dallas. 

(8) David Ford Saunders, b. 3-9-1955 at Dallas. 

(8) William Douglas Saunders, b. 3-7-19.59 at 

Dallas. 

(8) Nancye Saunders, b. 3-15-1963 at Dallas. 

This family lived at Dallas in 1963. 

The (3) ALIEN THWEATT ANDREWS family history continues on the 

next page. 



(4) GILBERTA SUSAN ANDREWS - M. 12-19-1865, John J. Warren, 

in a double wedding ceremony when her sister (4) MARTHA. 

INDIE ANDREWS married James Archer Saunders. (See page 35.) 

Two daughters of (4) ~ERTA SUSAN ANDREWS were living in 

South Hill, Va., (Mecklenburg Co.) in 1963. They were: 

(5) Ethel Hartwell lfarren. 

(5) Mrs. Grace Warren Gayle. 

(4) EMMA JANE ANDREI-JS - M, 1:Jilliam Thomas Oslin. (Later 

changed to Ozlin.) Two sons of this marriage were: 

(5) Perry Andrews Ozlin, Attorney-at-Law., who lived at 

Chase City, Mecklenburg County, in 1963. 

(5) Dr. Robert Lucas Ozlin, living in South Hill in 1963 

with his wife Marjorie. Dre Ozlin served in England 

on loan from the u. s .. Armed forces in World War I. 

On his return to this Country in 1919, he was assigned 

for duty at a hospital in New·York. There he met a 

Registered Nurse, a young Irish girl named Marjorie 

and they were married. On leaving the service, Dr. 

Ozlin established a practice in Brooklyn with Marjorie 

as his office assistant~ This team carried on in 

Brooklyn until he went into semi-retirement in recent 

years, and returned to his home in South Hill. He is 

still active on the staff of the local hospital and in 

a limited practice of his specialty, urology. 

(5) William Edward Andrews., a son of (4) WILLIAM O. ANDREWS 

and his wife Mary Lucas Binford had two daughters: 

(6) Ruth Andrews, who married ____ Jones. They 

lived in South Hill in 1963. 
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(6) Claudia Andrews, who married M. L. Thomasson. 

Lived in South Hill. They had ISSUE. 

(7) Elizabeth Sue Thomasson, b. 1921; m. 1942, 

Donald Edward Probst, of North Carolina. 

(7) Jean Thomasson, b. 1928; m. 1949, Harry 

Randolph Holmes. Lived in South Hill, 1963. 

(4) JOHN ALLEN ANDREWS .. Married Betty Drane. Lived and died 

in Bowling Green, Ky. Their children: 

(5) May Andrews 

(5) ·Harren Andrews 

(4) VARNEY o. ANDREWS - Married Cicily Jones. Lived in 

Nottoway Co., Va. Two of his infant children were buried 

in the family burial plot at the Andrews plantation home 

in Mecklenburg County. 

(5) Mary Lou Andrews, daughter of (4} WILLIAM O. ANDREWS 

and his wife Mary Lucas Binford, married D. s. Holmes. 

They lived in Mecklenburg County. They had ISSUE: 

(6) Sallie Lou Holmes, who married ____ Paulette. 

Sallie Lou Paulette lived in South Hill in 1963. 

The (3) ALIEN THl:ilE.ATT ANDREWS family occupied the plantation 

home in Mecklenburg County from the death of the first (2) VARNEY 

ANDREWS ca 1847 through the years of the War Between the States. 

The plantation was occupied by the (4) WILLIAM O. ANDREWS family 

until about 1925. 
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(4) VIRGINIA THWEATT ANDREWS - Married Henry Hawthorne 11 

They lived in Dinwiddie County, and Henry Hawthorne 

died there 9-14-1890. Their ISSUE: 

(5) Susie Blackwell Hawthorne, m. James Mellville Fisher. 

(5) Fayette Hawthorne, m. May Livesay. 

(5) Margaret Hawthorne, mn Esron Dickerson. 

(5) John M. Hawthorne.,, m. (1st) Carrie M. Crowe; 

(2nd) Ada Crowe; (3rd) ___ Coleman., 

(5) Nellie Hawthorne, ms Deloney Warren; ISSUE: 

(6) Winston Warren; (6) Howard Harren; (6) Earle 

Warrens 

(5) Thurman Thweatt Hawthorne, m. (1st) Lena Ellington; 

(2nd) Fannie Bellows. 

(5) Anna Florence Hawthorne, b. 9-7-1859, d. 5-3-1900; 

m. 3-27-1878, Lincoln Ferdinand Atkinson, b. 4-10-1853, 

de 12-28-1910. Their ISSUE: 

( 6) Wm. Guy Atkinson, m. Susie Crowe. 

(6) Harry Blackwell Atkinson, m. Lillian Auld. 

(6) Grace Randolph Atkinson, m. Arthur Maxey Moody. 

(6) John Andrew Gordon Atkinson, m. Nina Herring. 

(6) Thurman Chrystor Atkinson, m. Bettie Mae vJatkins. 

(6) Carleton Davis Atkinson, m. Lillian Bjertness. 

(6) Stanley Harper Atkinson, ma (1st) Louise __ ; 

(2nd) Mary ___ • 

(6) Mary Proctor Atkinson, b. 4-29-1885; m. Oscar 

Levi Vassar, b. 2-13-1890. This couple lived in 

Prince Edward County, near Farmville, Va., in 

1963. (See next page for their family record.) 



Children born to (6) Mary Proctor Atkinson and Oscar 

Levi Vassar were: 

(7) Anna Elizabeth Vassar, b. 10-15-1914; m. 

12-24-1947, Charles Bram.el Pickett, b. 9-28-1912. 

This couple lived in 1963 in Prince Edward County, 

Virginia. 

(7) Lois Randolph Vassar, b. 8-19-1916; m. 4-4-1942, 

Hezzie Paulett Walker, be 4-7-1909. Their ISSUE: 

(8) Randolph Paulett tJalker, b. 3-22-1943; (8) 

Marianne ~Talker, b. 10-26-1944; (8) Rosemarie 

Walker, b. 4-23-1947. 

(7) Reginald Levi Vassar., b. 8-22-1918; m. 5-28-1946, 

Dorothy Phelps Stiles, be 8-25-1919. ISSUE: 

(8) Barbara Stiles Vassar, b. 8-22-1949; (8) 

Joan Atkinson Vassar, b. 4-21-1953. This family 

lived in Pennsylvania in 1963. 

(7) Edith Atkinson Vassar, b. 8-16-1920; m. 12-24-1950, 

Wm. Wayne Gentry., b • 12-22-1919 • ISSUE: 

(8) Barbara Wayne Gentry, b. 7-21-1952; (8) 

Linda Anne Gentry, b. 12-29-1955; (8) Daniel 

Wayne Gentry, b. 7-29-1959. 

(7) Basil Moorefield Vassar, b. 11-24-1923; m. 

3-25-1946, Nancy Maude Foster, b. 3-14-1924. 

ISSUE: 

(8) Cynthia Moorefield Vassar, b. 1-2-1947; 

(8) John Randolph Vassar, b. 3-5-1950; 

(8) Charles Edward Vassar., b. 4-3-1951; 

(8) Mary Eliza.beth Vassar, b. 5-7-1952; 

(8) Anna Sue Vassar., b. 2-7-1956., 



CHAPrER IV 

(3) VARNEY ANDREWS, JR. The second Varney Andrews was born 

October 7, 1794, in Mecklenburg County, Virginia, during the adminis­

tration of George Washington, the first President of the United States. 

He was the seventh of a family of ten children. He grew up as a youth 

on the south bank of the Meherrin River in Mecklenburg County, where the 

family plantation was in operation. 

The Republic was exceedingly young during his youth. Even so, the 

population was then pushing across the Appalachian Mountains into the new 

state of Kentucky. He probably listened to tall tales about Kentucky 

from earliest childhood. The records indicate, however, that he may 

have stayed around home until age 18, when he enlisted in the United 

States Army, and served a term during the Har of 1812 with Great Britain. 

In later years, he was described in a document which appeared in his war 

service record, as 1118 years of age, six feet tall, had blue eyes and 

blond hair." (Ref: General Services Administration, National Archives 

and Records Service, file designation WC 24270.) 

This record shows that he served as a Corporal in the Sixth Regi­

ment of Virginia Militia, commanded by Captain John Moore, in the Com­

mand of Lieut. Col. Grief Green; that he volunteered in Mecklenburg 

County, in the State of Virginia on or about the fourth day of July, 

A. D. 1813, for a term of six months; that he served the six month term 

of enlistment and was discharged at Camp Cross Roads, near Norfolk, 

Virginia, in January, 1814. He was discharged with full honors. 

The records disclose nothing about where and how he spent the 

years between the termination of his military service until he went to 

Kentucky in 1818. There are no records concerning him in Kentucky un­

til he married Mary Uilliams Maxey in Monroe County, Kentucky, September 

10, 1826. 
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Mary Williams Maxey was born in Barren County, Kentucky, July 7, 

1802. She was the daughter of William and Nancy Maxey, who came to 

Kentucky from Halifax County, Virginia about the end of the eighteenth 

century. Since the descendants of the second Varney Andrews are equally 

descended from Mary Williams Maxey, the available Maxey family history 

is made a part of this record. 

The marriage of (3) Varney Andrews and Mary Williams Maxey united 

two families which even at that early date had been several generations 

in America. 

The first and second Varney Andrews had each participated in the 

only wars their country had been drawn into. The first (2) Varney 

Andrews, left an illiterate orphan when very young, accumulated a large 

estate, and assisted in a very material way, each of his ten sons and 

daughters to launch their own careers during his lifetime. He lived to 

a great age, and obviously was a man of great force of character who 

commanded immense respect in his generation. Indeed the impact of his 

forcefulness was such that both men and women of my generation, now 

living in Mecklenburg County, have as a middle name the name Andrews. 

The second (3) Varney Andrews was thirty two years of age, and 

Mary Williams Maxey was twenty four years old, when they were married. 

It was the first marriage for each of them, according to a statement 

made by his wife which was part of Varney's war service record. 

The will of the first (2) Varney Andrews relates that his son 

Varney was given one horse and a small 11wagon11 , two women servants and 

several hundred dollars in cash, during the father's lifetime. The 

horse and wagon were probably used to transport his gear to Kentucky in 

1818. The servants were quite obviously gifts at the time of his marriage 

to Mary Williams Maxey. By 1826, the year of the marriage, travel between 

Mecklenburg County and parts of Kentucky had become much less hazardous 
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and uncertain, following the opening about 1795 of the famous Wilderness 

Trail through Cumberland Gap. 

The Wilderness Trail in 1795 was the only artery of travel to the 

new State of Kentucky, and was not made passable to vehicles until that 

year. Even then, there were few bridges. Most rivers and streams had 

to be forded. But by 1826, the stage coach system was flourishing, and 

it is safe to believe that the two Andrews families in Virginia and 

Kentucky visited with and kept in close contact with one another. 

Varney and Mary Williams Andrews reared a large family, some of 

whom distinguished themselves in their community, and all of whom lived 

to earn the respect of their friends and neighbors. 

In Tennessee (J) Varney Andrews became more than an average suc­

cessful planter. He acquired large acreage in Jackson County, and the 

home he built is still standing near Celina, Tennessee. There are no 

records or letters indicating the reason for the move from Tennessee to 

Texas in 1838. Certainly at his age, 64 years, there must have been 

compelling reasons for him to leave a land of apparent security and 

venture into a new State where all the hazards of frontier life had to 

be faced. We wonder perhaps if the pioneering instinct which led him 

to Kentucky and to Tennessee had something to do with his decision. 

There were facts and some family tradition that lead to a differ­

ent conclusion. 

My father, (5) Samuel Varney Andrews, told me many times that the 

reason for the move of the Andrews family from Tennessee to Texas was 

"to avoid being overrun by invading armies in a war between the states." 

This was the opinion of the second (3) Varney Andrews, who was my 

father's grandfather. He predicted the conflict, and believed the clan 

would be in less danger in Texas than in Tennessee. 

Certainly he was not impelled to the move by economic necessity. 
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He transported his entire family, his animals, his equipment and all his 

people from his home place in Tennessee to Grayson County, Texas. On 

arrival he immediately acquired a large acreage of choice farmlands in 

Grayson County, and became a successful planter in a totally new en­

vironment. 

Grayson County, Texas, Deed Book 1-200 records the purchase by 

Varney Andrews from P. T. Corneal of 1,280 acres of land on Dec. 8, 1858. 

He purchased 140 acres from Clark in December, 1860. (Deed Records, Book 

M-469.) A purchase of 53½ acres from S. Eashburn on Dec. 8, 1860, was re­

corded in Deed Record Book N-260. His will, executed March 10, 1879 be­

queathed to his wife "all of a certain tract of land being part of 470 

acres deeded to me by Stephen H. Scott and wife. 11 l!fe found no public 

record of this transaction. 

The United States Census Report for 1860 listed the value of his 

farm land, home, equipment and chattels at $18,250.00. 

The move to Texas accomplished what he was determined to do, ac­

cording to family tradition. He protected his estate from the ravages 

of invading armies. Although four of his sons defended their State in 

the Confederate Arrrry, Varney carried on as a planter and emerged from 

the blight which overran the seceding States after the close of the war, 

with his holdings intact. We have never had any authentic information 

as to how this was done, when so many of the land owners of the State 

were taxed so heavily by the imposed State Government that they lost 

everything. 

His wife's nephew, Samuel Bell Maxey, who with his father, Rice 

Maxey, preceded Varney and Mary Williams Andrews to Texas in 1857, was 

largely responsible for the escape of Texas from invading armies in the 

War Between the States, which began less than three years after the 

arrival of the Andrews family in Texas. 
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Samuel Bell Maxey was made a General in the Army of the Confeder­

ate States of America, and was given charge of the military forces in 

north Texas. He accepted this responsibility, although he had bitterly 

opposed secession. The delegation from his home County, Lamar, was the 

only delegation to the State Secession Convention which voted solidly 

against secession. Nevertheless, when secession became an accomplished 

fact, the county and all its citizens threw themselves wholeheartedly 

into the conflict. General Maxey succeeded in preventing the Union 

armed forces from crossing the State borders in north and east Texas. 

(4) Edwin Jones Andrews served as a commissioned officer in General 

Maxey• s command. Other sons of Varney and Mary Williams Andrews, who 

also served in the military establishment, were probably in the same 

command. 

A record which was a part of the family bible of Varney and Mary 

Williams ~ndrews, listed the sons and daughters born to this couple. 

Their names follow: 

(4) William Al(l)en Andrews, b. Sept. 30, 1827, in Kentucky. 

(4) John Benjamin Andrews, b. in Kentucky Aug. 29, 1828, died 
October 19, 1835. 

(4) Edwin Jones Andrews, b. January 16, 1830, .Monroe County, 
Kentucky, died July 17, 1900, at 
Sherman, Texas. 

(4) Alvin Rufus Andrews, b. August 16, 1833, Jackson County, 
Tennessee. Died at Sherman, Texas, 
about 1905. 

(4) Robert C. Andrews, b. January 24, 1836, in Jackson County, 
Tennessee. Died at Floydada, Texas, 1917. 

(4) Nancy Williams Andrews, b. October 7, 1837, Jackson County, 
Tennessee. Died in Grayson County, 
November 20, 1911. 

(4) Varney F. Andrews, b. Sept. 9, 1839, died March 27, 1858. 

(4) James Radford Andrews, b. Sept. 23, 1841, Jackson County, 
Tennessee. Died at vVhitewright, 
Texas, 4-5-1927. 
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(4) Mary E(lizabeth) Andrews, b. July 23, 1843, at Celina, Tenn., 
Died Grayson County. 

(4) Mark Henry Andrews, b. April 6, 1845, at Celina., Tenn • ., 
Died at Sherman, Texas. 

An infant., b. Sept., 121 1831, died in a few hours. 

(3) Varney Andrews., Jr., lived on and operated the large .farm in 

Grayson County, near the town of Bells, until his death March 13, 1879. 

His son, Dr. R. C. Andrews attended him in his .final illness. Senator 

Samuel Bell Maxey., at home in Paris., Texas between sessions of Congress, 

and his wife, Marilda. Cass Denton Maxey., went to the Andrews home im­

mediately upon receipt of a telegram from Dr. R. C. Andrews announcing 

his father's death. (Ref: GSA, National Archives, file WC-24270s) 

Each of his living sons and daughters, all of whom lived in Grayson 

County, were also present. 

(5) Mary Williams Maxey Andrews, his wife., lived with her son, 

James Radford Andrews at his farm home after the death of her husband. 

(Ref: u. s. Census Report, Grayson County., 1880.) As so frequently 

happened in that age, her name '°Mary" had become 11Polly11 , and she was 

so listed in the census report. The· Sherman Register, a newspaper 

published at Sherman, Texas., at her death identified her as Mrs. Polly 

Andrews. The adoption and use in official records of such "pet" names, 

has caused endless confusion to researchers. 

The death of 11 Pol]y11 Andrews came about in a tragic manner and 

greatly shocked the entire community. Her daughter Mary, with her 

husband Anderson P. King and their family live on a farm two or three 

miles from the James Radford Andrews .farm. On July 15, 1880, "Polly" 

Andrews spent the day with the King family and remained to eat 

supper. Between eight and nine o'clock P. M • ., Anderson King hitched 

a team or horses to a wagon and undertook to drive her to her homeo 

It was a moonless night, and on the road the horses became 
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frightened at some object in the dark and bolted - "ran away, 11 as it was 

always described when I was a boy. "Polly" was thrown from the seat of 

the wagon to the ground. 1Nhen A.nderson Jlir..g found her in the darkness 

she was dead, it was later determined, of a broken neck. She was 78 years 

of age, had lived the life of a useful citizen in three states, and reared 

a large family. She was greatly beloved by all who knew her. 

The bodies of Varney Andrews, Jr., and Mary Williams Maxey Andrews 

were buried in Greenwood Cemetery, near the farm home in which they lived 

until their death. Handsome gravestones mark their resting place. Sever­

al other members of the family of later generations are also buried in 

this cemetery. 

Available information about the sons and daughters of Varney and 

Mary VJilliams Maxey .Andrews and their families., is set forth in the follow­

ing pages of this and the next chapter. 

(4) William Al(l)en Andrews - The first born son. His birth in 

Kentucky was recorded in the Varney Andrews family bible. No other re­

cord concerning him was found, and he was not listed in any census report 

which we examined. 

(4) Alvin Rufus Andrews - He was married January 31, 1872 to Ella 

Daniels. According to the U.S. Census Report of 1880, he was deputy Tax 

Collector for Grayson County, and had the following children: 

(5) Betta, age 7 

(5) Rice M. age 6 

(5) Richard, age 4 

The will of Varney Andrews, proved in Probate Court, June 19, 1879, 

named Edwin Jones Andrews and Alvin Rufus Andrews, executors "of my last 

will and testament." This will provided for the sale of lands of the es­

tate and an equal division to all surviving sons and daughters, except 

William Andrews who was not mentioned, after specific bequests were paid. 
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County Judge S. D. Steedman, by formal action June 19, 1879, appointed 

J.B. Morgan, and A. M. Bryant to view and appraise the property be­

longing to the estate of Varney Andrews, deceased, and report their 

action to the court. (Ref: Sheet 4, Volume I, pages 543, 544 and 545, 

Probate Minutes, Grayson County, Texas.) 

According to court records of Grayson County, the executors never 

made an accounting of their stewardship to the court. Efforts were made 

to bring the executors into court and have them make a report of their 

actions. Two court orders were issued to this end. A court order re­

corded in Book M, Probate Minutes, page 314, read as follows: 

"Estate of Varney Andrews, December 13, 1882, E. J. & A. R, 

Andrews, executors. 

11 It is ordered by the Court that E. J. & A, R. Andrews, Executors 

of the Estate of Varney Andrews, deceased, be cited to appear at 

the January Term, 1883 and file report showing the condition of the 

estate. 11 

A similar entry, appeared in Book M, page 361, and read as follows: 

"Estate of Varney Andrews, Dec 1d. 1-17-188,3." 

11 It is ordered by the Court that E. J. & A. R. Andrews, Executors 

be cited to appear at the March term, 1883, of this Court and file 

a report showing the condition of the estate, and show cause why 

inventory has not been filed. 

Neither the record books, nor the Docket file which contained the original 

will of Varney Andrews, nor any records of Court action contained further 

mention of any action taken by the court, and there was no indication 

that the Executors ever filed answer to these court orders, or ever 

filed an inventory report, or made any other accounting of the estate. 

These circumstances may explain an apparent coolness which appeared 

to exist between the family of E. J. Andrews and the families of the 
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brothers and sisters, all of whom except the Dr. R. Ce Andrews family 

lived in Sherman or Grayson county when I was a boy. I lived with my 

family in Sherman from 1900 to 1910, as a young teen age boy. I never 

saw my grand aunts Mary King and Nancy Arterberry both of whom lived in 

Grayson County with their families until their deaths. I remember seeing 

my grand uncle Mark Henry Andrews on the streets of Sherman, a town of 

about 5,000 people, one time, and never anywhere else. I never saw his 

wife or any other member of his family until about 1915 when his son 

Henry Leon Andrews came to Amarillo, Texas, where I was then living. 

I never saw my grand uncle James Radford Andrews, who lived at 

Whitewright, Texas, in Grayson County, about twelve miles from Sherman, 

until he came to Amarillo about 1914 to attend a Confederate Veterans 

Reunion. I never saw any member of his family, any where or at any time. 

All these grand aunts and uncles had large families, prospered, 

lived well and educated their children. My grandfather, Edwin Jones 

Andrews had a large family. 

I did not know Alvin Rufus Andrews, nor any member of his :amily. 

I only remember that he lived in Sherman until his death about 1905. 

According to Ray's Roster of the 16th Texas Calvary, CSA, (4) Alvin 

Rufus Andrevvs was Ordnance Sergeant, Company D, Organized near Mantua 

(Grayson County) in February 1862. Other members of this organization 

who were living in Sherman, Texas, in 1905 were Chilton A. Andrews and 

Mark Henry Andrews. (4) Mark Henry Andrews was the youngest son of 

Varney and Mary Williams Maxey Andrews. 

Chilton A. Andrews was listed in the u. s. Census Report for 

Grayson County, 1860, as the son of P. J. Andrews, one of eleven children 

of this family. 

No public record identifies P. J. Andrews, or his relationship to 

Varney Andrews. Landrum's Illustrated History of Grayson County, Texas, 
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published in 1960, records his birth place as Kentucky, and that he came 

to Texas from Missouri in 1849. According to the 1860 Census Report he 

was born in 1811. That he was known to the Andrews family in Tennessee 

in 1858 is proven by a passage in a letter written from Plano, Texas, 

dated May 2, 1858 by L. w. Oglesby to Alvin Rufus Andrews at Celina, 

Tennessee. Oglesby was a relative by marriage to Edwin Jones Andrews, 

and his wife Burnetta Fowler Andrews. He said: 

11 I also have been at Patrick Andrews 1 • • • twice. They were all 

well and doing well. Patrick Andrews is a well informed man and gave me 

more information about the Country than any man. I am much taken with 

him. He has his steam mill in successful operation." 

Chilton A. Andrews married Missouri Bullock October 18, 1870. 

(Grayson County Marriage Records.) I did not know the family in Sherman 

but did meet three of their daughters in Amarillo, Texas, where I lived 

prior to World ii\Jar I. They were: Mrs. Ray Wheatley, Mrs. Charles A. 

Fisk, and Miss Ruth Andrews. 

(4) ROBERT C. ANDREWS, son of (3) Varney and Mary 11illiams Maxey 

Andrews, married Jan. 1, 1854, Lucy Kirkpatrick, b. 1837, d. 1922. 

This marriage was recorded in the (3) Varney Andrews family bible. 

It took place in Jackson County, Tennessee. This couple came to Texas 

in 1858 with all other members of the (3) Varney Andrews clan. 

There is no record showing where (4) Robert C. Andrews received 

his education. It is of record, however, that he had started the 

practice of medicine immediately upon his arrival in Texas. The u. s. 

Census Report for Grayson County, 1860, recorded his occupation as 

physician. 

He later practiced in a small town near Paris, Texas. In 1891 he 

moved to Floyd County, in western Texas, and helped establish the town 

of Floydada in that County. 
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Descendants of this couple follow: 

( 5) MAXEY W. ANDREWS, b. 18 54 

(5) MARY WILLIAMS ANDREWS, b. 11-24-1857; d. 1-3-1926; me Jim King. 

(5) MARIIJJA MAXEY ANDRE'HS, b. 1--1-1860; d. 12-6-1875., This child 

was named for the wife of General Samuel Bell Maxey, Mirilda 

Cass Denton Maxey$ 

(5) VARNEY ANDREWS, b. 7-9-1864.1 in Grayson Co., Texas; d. 9-6-1943 

at Plainview, Texas; m& Emma Josephine Pickens, b. 1-17-1870~ 

~...arried at Anson, Texas, 11-19-1890. Josephine Pickens died 

12"".'18-1921 at Floydada:, Texas., 

Children born to this couple were: 

(6) AGNES I. ANDRETrJS, b. 3-10-1892; d. 6-25-18920 

(6) MARVIN K. ANDREWS, b,. 6-4-1893, d~ 12-18-18970 

(6) CARTER COBB ANDRD--JS, b. 2-4-1896 at Valley View, Texas; 

m. 1-18-1920 Ruth Seale at Plainview, Texase 

ISSUE: 

(7) ANNA JO, b. 1-12-1921; m. Clarence Farnham. (In 

U,.s. Navy during World War II.) 

ISSUE: 

(8) CHERYL LOUISE FARNHAM, b. 2-26-1944. 

(6) CLEO ANDRET,TS, b. 2-18-1899 at Valley View, Texas; married 

Clarence Goins, 4-21-1921 at Lockney, Texas. Clarence 

Goins died May, 19530 

ISSUE: 

(7) JO V. GOINS, b- 1-22-1922 at Floydada, Texas; m. 

H. Allen Bingham 11-17-1945 at Jacksonville, N.C. 

They both served in the U ,.s. Marine Corps during 

World Har II. ISSUE: 

(8) SHARON LYNN BINGHAM, b~ 12-26-19460 
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(6) MA.URINE ANDREtfS, b. 3-11-1906 at Valley Viev~ Texas; m, 

5-21-1926 at Floydada, Texas, Cecil Delk, b. 11-14-1902. 

This couple was living at Amarillo, Texas in 1963. 

ISSUE: 

(7) VARNEY ROBERT DELK, b. 4-8-1939 at Amarillo, Texas; 

m. 1-19-1963 at Fort Worth, Texas, Linda Jean Hubbard5 

b. September, 1939. VARNEY ROBERT DELK entered the 

u.s. Air Force May 10, 1963. Both he and Linda Jean, 

his 'Wife, are graduates of the Texas Christian Uni­

versity, Fort Worth, Texas. 

(5) SARAH SHIELDS ANDREWS, b. 9-25-1865, d. ca 1941; ma David 

Leonidas Flynt. Children of this couple were: 

( 6) Dee Flynt 

(6) Edward Flynt 

(6) Lonnie Bob Flynt, m. E.E. Ivy ca 1904. 

(6) Byrdie, m. F. Thompson. 

(6) Lucy Flynt, m. Alva Jacob Moore. 

(6) Elizabeth Flynt, m. Jack Iivnch. 

(6) Margaret, m. John Floyd. 

(6) ODIE FLYNT, b. 1-14-1874, d. 5-16-1955; m. 12-24-1893 

Alfred Eustace Boyd, b. 12-24-1869, d. 4-7-1936. 

ISSUE: 

(7) WILLIAM LEONIDAS BOYD, b~ 2-3-1895. 

(7) MAXEY ALFRED BOYD, b. 3-22-1902. 

(7) INA MARGARET BOYD, b. 11-18-1900; m. Earl Taylor 

Platt 7-4-1942. INA MARGARET PLATT is descended 

from the immigrant ancestors, (-2).THO:MAS ANDREHS, 

who arrived in Virginia in 1685, and from JOHN OLIVER 

EUSTACE, JR., who arrived in Pennsylvania in 1825. 
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(4) NANCY WILLIAMS ANDREWS a• b~ 10-7 .. ~1837.i de 11-20~·1911; m,. 

1-8-1857 Benjamin Franklin Arterberry,, b. 12-11-,1833 in 

Jackson Co., Tenn.; d. 10-1~1905, Grayson Co,, Texas('! 

(Benjamin Franklin Arterberry was the the son of Thompson 

Arterberry, b. 3-9-1806; d,, 9-5°,1872 in Monroe Co • ., Ky., and 

Elizabeth Johns, b~ 4 .. 17°-·1813,., T:1ompson Arterberry was the 

son of Moses Arterberry, b~ in N,.,C,, served in the Wnr of 

1812, and died in Kentuckye 

Benjamin Franklin Arterberry perforrr.ed valiant service in 

the War Between the States" He was Sergeant of Company 11D11 , 

First Battalion, Texas Sharp Shooters, CSA, commanded by 

Major James Burnet, in the overall command of Major General 

Samuel Bell Maxey. Numerous letters written throughout the 

years 1863-64-65, by his wife Nancy Andrews Arterberry to 

Sergeant Arterberry, and many of his letters to her during 

that tragic period, vividly depict the loneliness, the 

heartaches, and the unhappiness of this young couple brought 

upon them by events beyond their control.) 

Children of (4) NANCY 'WILLIAMS (Al'TDRE1rJS) ARTERBERRY and 

Benjamin Franklin Arterberry were: 

(5) Lou Andrews Arterberry, b. 10-1-1860., d,, 9-2-19440 

1f.(5) Mary E,, Arterberry., b,, 12-25-1870, d,, 11-24-1950; m., v,J"Cr 

McLemore,. (The story of the Mary E" Arterberry family 

follows this scheduleft) 

(5) Milissa A. Arterberry, b. 1858, d,, 1929; me Clem A. 

Belote, b. 12-1-1852, d,, 4-10~·19340 

(5) Horace H. Arterberry, b" 1865" 

(5) Thomas E. Arterberry, b,, 10-27-1868. 

(5) Rufus Arterberry, be 18660 



* (5) Mary Elizabeth Arterberry, m. w.c. McLemore, b. 2-27-1872, 

d. 12-31-1951. There children were: 

(6) Holly Arterberry McLemore, b. 9-8-1904 at Savoy, 

Texas; m. Christine Veazey, b. 12-25-1907 at Van 

Alstyne, Texas. This couple hand one son. 

(7) Joe Edward McLemore, b. 12-13-1934 at Hillsboro, 

Texas. Dr. Joe Edward McLemore was a Captain in 

the USAF, stationed in England in 1963. 

Christine Veazey, the Mother of Capt. Joe Edward 

McLemore, was the daughter of John Thomas Veazey, b. 

6-10-1876 at Van Alstyne, Grayson Co., Texas, and his 

wife Monte Zuma Thornton, b. 6-15-1877 at Cherokee, 

Alabama, d. 11-12-1945 at Sherman, Texas. John Thomas 

Veazey was the son of G.E. Veazey, b. 7-19-1854, 

Tallapoosa Co,, AlabcJ11a, and Savannah Pogue, b. 

Dadeville, Tallapoosa Co., Alabama. G.E. Veazey 

was the son of G.TPT. Veazey, b. 1816, Greene County, 

Virginia, died 1864 while in the army of the CSA. 

Savannah Pogue was the daughter of John L. Pogue 

and Elizabeth Gray. 

(6) Holly Arterberry McLemore and wife Christine Veazey 

McLemore were, in 1963, living in Bayto'Wll, Texas. 

He was principal of R.E. Lee High School, and his 

wife was teaching in the public school. 
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( 4) VARNEY FRANCIS ANDREWS - This young man died in Tennessee when 

18 years of age, shortly before the family moved to Texas. No information 

relative to the manner of his death, except that it was sudden and tragic, 

was available in any family record. 

In a letter written at Plano, Texas, May 2, 1858, and addressed to 

(4) A. R. (Alvin Rufus) Andrews, young Varney's brother, L. W. Oglesby, 

a relative by marriage of Burnetta FCl/il"ler Andrews, said this: 

11 1 have received two letters from home since I left, one 

from Martha (his wife, Martha Fcwler) stating the sudden 

and unfortunate death of your Brother Varney, which morti­

fied my feelings very much, for Varney was a youth that I 

thought a great deal of. His kind and affectionate manner 

was the theme of all who knew him, and to be taken from 

his earthly scenes so young and so promising is a sad and 

bereaving calamity upon his Father and Mother, Sisters 

and Brothers •11 

In this letter, L. w. Oglesby also stated that in another letter 

from his wife Martha, dated April 11, 1858, he learned that (4) Edwin 

Jones Andrews and his wife Burnetta Fowler Andrews, with their family 

had departed Celina, Tennessee,on April 8, 1858, on the historic move 

to Texas. 

Another portion of the letter said: "I have seen your Uncle Rice 

Maxey, and Samuel Bell Maxey. They were well pleased and both well." 

(4) JAJ\IlES RADFORD ANDREWS - Married 10-11-1870 to Mary Rosalba 

Maloch, b. 3-25-1852 d. 8-28-1909. 

ISSUE: 

(5) Charles E. Andrews, b. 1875 d. 1942. 

(5) John H. Andrews, b. 8-27-1877, d. 2-6-1893. 

(5) Edgar Andrews, b. 8-2-1881, d. 6-6-1883. 
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(S) Lucian Andrews, b. 1884, d. 1949. 

This son of Varney and Mary Williams Maxey Andrews owned and oper­

ated a 200 acre farm in the immediate vicinity of the Varney Andrews farm 

near Bells, Texas, in Grayson County. The family lived on this farm, the 

children were born there, and they prospered. At some unrecorded time 

the family moved to Whitewright, Texas, a small town a few miles from the 

farm. The family lived there until the death of both the father and 

mother. Their bodies are buried at Whitewright. 

(4) James Radford Andrews, in 1861 enlisted in the Ninth Texas 

Cavalry and served under General Bragg in the Principal engagements in 

Mississippi, Alabama, Tennessee, Georgia and Kentucky. He was engaged 

in the battles of Shiloh, Murphreesboro and Perryville. In the latter 

days of the war he was transferred to the west side of the Mississippi, 

where he served under General Sammuel Bell Maxey until the war 1s end. 

(4) MARY ELIZABETH ANDREWS - This daughter of Varney Andrews, Jr., 

was born 7-23-1843 and died 11-13-1918. She married Anderson P. King, 

September 4, 1860. Anderson King was born in Tennessee in 1832 and died 

in Grayson County, Texas, in 1918. His father was Robert Elmer King, Sr. 

Their Children: 

(5) Edgar King, b. 1861, d. 1893. 

(5) Sam C. King, married Vinnie Bynum 12-18-1894. 

(5) Nannie L. King, b. 5-7-1863. 

(5) R. Varney King, b. 9-19-1871. 

(5) Rufus A. King, b. 12-14-1875, d. 12-7-1907. 

(5) Lulu Belle King, b. 9-11-1864, d. 5-24-1943. Married 12-28-1882, 

Robert H. King, b. 3-14-1852, d. 1-15-1897. 

Their Children: 

(6) Mary Lucas King, b. 11-21-1883. 

(6) Willie King (dau.) b. 1-15-1885. 
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( 6) Robert Hailey King, Jr., b. 4-6-1888. 

(6) Oscar King, Jr., b. 6-20-1892. 

(6) Lou Belle King, b. 10-17-1893. 

(6) Earl King, b. 7-26-1897. 

Following the death 1-15-1897 of her first husband, Robert Hailey 

King, Lulu Bell King married 11-20-1902, William Pascal Vaughn of Grayson 

County, Texas. William Pascal Vaughn was born 4•24-1870, died 4-28-1942. 

To this union was born: 

(6) Katherine Vaughn, b., 8-1-1905, m. 10•3-1926 to James Emory 

Christian. Children born to Katherine and James Emory Christian were: 

(7) William Vaugh Christian, b. 9-18-1927; m. (1st) 6-26-1946) 

Demetra Dora DePhillips; ISSUE: (8) David Michael, be 

6-26-1949. m. (2) 6-9-1956 to Martha Jean Kincaid, b. 1-14-

1934; ISSUE: (8) Ellen Kincaid Christian, b. 9-26-1960. 

(7) James Emory Christian, Jr., b. 10-21-1933; m. 9-3-1955 Greta 

Joyce Mode, b. 9-7-1934; ISSUE: (8) James Emory Christian, 

III, b. 8-15-1956; (8) Joseph William Christian, b. 11-10-1957. 

All data concerning the (4) Mary Elizabeth (Andrews) King family 

were obtained from the Anderson P. King and the Robert Hailey King 

family bibles, and from gravestones in the Greenwood Cemetery near 

Savoy, Texas, and in the cemetery at Whitewright, Texas. The James 

Emory Christian family records supplied information concerning that 

family. 
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(4) MARK mmY ANDREWS, b. 4-6-1845., Jackson County, Tenn.; 

d. 4-2-1919., Grayson County, Texas; m. Emma Louella Goben, 

b. 8-31-1858, Fannin County., Texas. 

ISSUE: 

(5) Mary Ethel Andrews, b. 5-16-1882, Grayson County~ Texas; 

m. Claude c. Shumate. Living in Dallas., Texas, 1963. 

(5) Vera Annette Andrews, b. 9-21-1884, Grayson County, 

Texas; m. (1st) Ralph Dowler; (2nd) Fred Monroe. Vera 

Annette Andrews died at Dallas, Texas 2-12-1963. 

(5) Henry Leon Andrews, b. Grayson County, Texas, 12-9-1986, 

d. 6-12-1952; m. (1st) Julia Atkins; (2nd) Fairy Arnette. 

(5) Alluwe c. Andrews, b. Grayson County, Texas, 3-28-1890; 

m. Ella Mae Alexander, 5-28-1913. Living at Anahuac, 

Texas, 1963. 

(5) Mark Oren Andrews, b. Grayson County, Texas, 2-11-1880, 

d. 12-23-1947; m. 2-14-1900 Sarah Maggie ~lright, b~ 

10-4-1881. 

ISSUE: 

(6) Sarah Frances Andrews, b. 8-2-1913; m. Clifford A. 

Taylor~ Living in Dallas, Texas, 1963~ 

(6) Ralph Oren Andrews, b. 10-14-1903; m. (1st) 

Fredrika Haizlip, d. 7-7-1944; (2nd) 12-18-1948 

Roberta 'Wheeler of Hillsboro, Texas. 

ISSUE of first marriage: 

(7) Guy Hayden Andrews, b. 12-28-1933; m. 8-31-1957., 

Jacquelyn Smart, b. 10-29-1934. 

(This family record continued next paga) 



(7) Margaret Virginia Andrews, b. 10-15-1935; 

m. 1-29-1953 Dr. Eldon O, Harrison. 

ISSUE: -
(8) Gregory Scott Harrison, b. 5'-2B-1954; 

(8) Glen Eldon Harrison, b. 10-3-195'6; 

(8) Lisa De Anne Harrison, b. 11-12-1960; 

(8) Shannon Wade Harrison, b. 6 ... 6-1962. 

The Dr. Eldon o. Harrison family lived in 

Richardson, Texas in 1963. 
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CHAPI'ER V 

THE Mi\XEY FAMILY - The Maxey family bible, old letters and records 

in family possession, and a volume in the Dallas Public Library, titled: 

TEXAS CHARTER MEMBERS OF THE HUGUENOT SCCIETY, FOUNDERS OF MANAKIN, IN 

THE COLONY OF VIRGINIA, VOL. I, are the authorities for all data included 

in this history, except as otherwise stated. 

The family bible is currently in possession of Mrs. Lala Long, 

widow of Samuel Bell Maxey Long, who was a nephew and adopted son of 

Sam Bell Maxey. Mrs. Long lives at 812 Church Street, Paris, Texas, in 

the home built, according to Mrs. Long's account, in 1866. 

Mary Williams Maxey Andrews, wife of Varney Andrews, Jr., and aunt 

of Samuel Bell Maxey, descended from Edward Maxey and his wife Susannah, 

both born in France. They came to the Virginia Colony after the revoca­

tion of the Edict of Nantes in 1685. Edward Maxey died in 1740 and 

Susannah died in 1743, both in Goochland County, Virginia. (Ref: Deed 

and Will Book #3, page 298, and Deed and Will Book #4, page 212, 

Goochland County, Virginia.) 

Children born to this couple were:­

John Maxey 

William Maxey 

Nathaniel Maxey 

Elizabeth Maxey Radford 

Susannah Maxey Epperson 

Walter Maxey 

Sylvanus Maxey 

The records fail to show directly which of the sons of Edward and 

Susannah Maxey became the father of Radford Maxey, of Halifax County, 

Virginia, who was the grandfather of Mary Williams Maxey Andrews. 

We can eliminate John Maxey, as the will of Edward Maxey, dated 

-64-



4-18-1737 and probated 5-20-1740, name John 1 s two sons as Sampson Maxey 

and Edward Maxey• 

This leaves ~Tilliam, Nathaniel, Walter and Sylvanus as candidates 

for the position of father of Radford Maxey. It seems reasonable to be­

lieve that the last three, Nathaniel, Walter and Sylvanus may also be 

eliminated for the reason that none of the three names were carried over 

into the Radford Maxey family. On the other hand, the name William was 

found in several generations of the descendents of Radford Maxey. 

Radford Maxey•s first son was named William, and it seems likely he was 

named for his grandfather. 

It is easy to deduce where the name 11Radford11 came from. Eliza­

beth, the daughter of Edward and Susannah Maxey, married a Radford. It 

was natural for Elizabeth's brother William to name his son Radford. 

If we accept William ~faxey as the father of Radford Maxey, the 

line to Mary Williams Maxey Andrews was as follows: 

(1) Edward Maxey, b. France, d. Goochland County, Va., 1740. 

(1) Susannah Maxey, b. France, d. Goochland County., Va • ., 174.3. 

(2) William Maxey., b. Goochland County, Va • ., d. ______ • 

(3) Radford Maxey., b. ____ d. Halifax County, Va • ., 

ca 1771. ·will probated 1771. (Reference 

Torrence Hills.) 

(3) Elizabeth Fuqua Maxey, b. ____ d. _____ • 

(4) William Maxey, b. 3-11-17.59, d. 5-27-1833. M. 9-9-1781'. 

(4) Nancy Williams Maxey, b. 10-4-1764., d. 9-12-1850. 

Dau. of James Williams and Ann Patillo, of Lunenburg County, 

Virginia. 

Ann Patillo, b. 7-15-1728, was the daughter of James and Mary 

Patillo of Bristol Parish (Prince George County, Virginia). 

!ssue: 



(5) Radforq Maxey, 4-15-1786, 1-1-1855. 

(5) John Maxey, 12-8-1787, 6-22-1851. 

(5) James w. Maxey, 4-10-1789, d. • ----
(5) Wm. Maxey, b. 2-13-1791, d. • -----
(5) Edward Maxey, b. 9-7-1792, d. April, 1850. 

(5) Elizabeth Maxey, b. 1794, d. young. 

(5) Robert C, Maxey, b. 10-2-1796, d. 5-3-1867. 

(5) Henry P. Maxey, b. 9-9-1798. 

(5) Rice Maxey, b. 7-3-1800, d. 1-11-1878, Paris, Texas. 

(5) Mary Williams Maxey, b. 7-7-1802, d. 7-16-1880. 

(5) Nancy Maxey, b. 8-12-1805', d. young. 

(5) Joel Maxey, b. March 29, 1804, d. young. 

(3) Radford Maxey, father of (4) William Maxey, grandfather of (5) 

Mary Williams Maxey, (5) Rice Maxey, and (5) John Maxey, was a Vestryman, 

in 1763, of Antrim Parish, in Halifax County. (Ref: W & M Quarterly, 

Vol. 7, 2nd Ser•, page 62 •) A volume titled THE HISTORY OF HALIFAX 

COUNTY, VIRGINIA, By Wirt Johnson Carrington, records Radford Maxey as 

a Justice of Halifax County, May 8, 1767& 

(3) Radford and Elizabeth Fuqua Maxey had two other sons in ad­

dition to (4) William Maxey~ (4) John Maxey was a Revolutionary soldier. 

(Ref: GSA, National Archives and Records, file R 7043.) (4) Joshua 

Maxey was another son. We have no information about the descendents of 

either of these two sons. 

The (.5) Mary Williams Maxey Andrews story is told elsewhere in this 

record. 

The Maxey family story would be incomplete without the history in 

some detail of (6) Samuel Bell Maxey, a son of (5) Rice Maxey, bom in 
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Barren County, Kentucky, who married Lucy Pope Bell, b. 12-14-1794 in 

Richmond, Virginia, d. 7-7-1866, in Paris, Texas. They were married 

October 9, 1821. Lucy Pope Bell was the danghter of Capt. Samuel Bell, 

a native of Albemarle County, Va., and a Revolutionary Soldier. (Ref: 

Revolutionary Soldiers of Va., Special Report, Department of Archives 

and History, by H. J,. Eckenrode, Virginia State Library.) Lucy Pope 

Bell Maxey was a great patriot, idolized by her son (6) Samuel Bell 

Maxey, himself a great patriot, soldier and statesman. Letters in pos­

session of the family, indicate that the death of Lucy Pope Bell may 

have been hastened by the collapse of the Confederacy, with which her 

son had cast his lot, after bitterly opposing secsssion. 

The Fort Worth, Texas Star-Telegram of April 11, 1942, published 

an article about General Maxey, under a headline which read: 

PARIS ARMY CAMP WILL BEAR NAME OF TEXAS HERO 

Following are excerps from the article, much of which was taken 

from two volumes in the Dallas Public Library, titled: "BIOGRAPHICAL 

DIRECTORY OF THE AMERICAN CONGRESS, 1774-1927" and 11 BIOGRAPHICAL 

REGISTER OF OFFICERS AND GRADUATES OF THE U.S. MILITARY ACADEMY." 

11The naming of Camp Maxey, seven miles north of Paris, honors 

a man who was a veteran of two wars and who attained the rank 

of Major General. In civilian life he served two terms in the 

United States Senate, and had a distinguished career in the 

pr~ctice of law o 

"Maxey was a native of Kentucky, born March 30., 1825, in 

Thompkinsville, Monroe County. He entered the United States 

Military Academy at West Point in 1842 when 17 years of age. 

11After graduation in 1846 from West Point, Maxey went as a 

second lieutenant with the 7th Infantry to Mexico. He served 

under General Taylor at Monterey, and under General Scott in 
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the siege of Vera Cruz and the drive against Mexico Citye He was 

breveted first lie~tenant for gallantry in action at Contreras 

and Cherubusco, and was in the battle of Molino del Rey and other 

engagements which culminated in the capture of the Mexican Capi­

tal. Lieutenant Maxey was placed in command of one of five compa­

nies which were chosen as a city guard during the occupation of 

Mexico City., 

"After returning to the United States, army life palled, and he 

resigned from the army Sept. 17, 1849. His only brother, a 

captain of Kentucky volunteers, had been killed in the Mexican 

War, and his father's wish that he join him in the practice of 

law prevailed. 

"He was married on July 19, 1853 to Marilda Cass Denton4 The 

father and son, with their families moved to Paris, Texas, in 

1857 and practiced law together until the outbreak of the war 

between the states. Samuel Bell Maxey was elected to the State 

Senate of Texas in 1861, but he resigned to accept military 

service, an4 his father was elected in his place. 

"After secession became an accomplished fact, Samuel Bell Maxey 

raised a company for the Confederate army, numbering about 70 

men at the time it was formed on May 21, 1861~ Maxey was 

elected Colonel when the Lamar Rifles, as the company was called, 

was expanded into a regiment and designated as the Ninth Texas., 11 

The article continued with an account of Col. Maxey' s Ninth Texas 

traveling by boat from Shreveport, Laa, to Memphis, Tennessee, where it 

joined the forces of General Albert Sidney Johnson. Promoted to Brigo 

General, Maxey was sent to Chattanooga to reorganize the troop stationed 

thereo He participated in the Battle of Shiloh, and afterward served in 

a number of engagemento in lower Mississippio The article continued: 



"General Maxey was transferred in the fall of 1863 to command the 

Indian Territory ••• With little aid from army headquarters, 

General Maxey organized and put under arms thousands of Choctaws 

and Chickasaw Indians, who were friendly to the Confederacy., but 

who had been in confusion and were almost destitute. 

General Maxey directed the Indians in successful operations a­

gainst the Union forces, capturing vast stores of food and cloth­

ing, wagons and military equipment. He also moved soldiers into 

Arkansas to assist General Sterling Price in blocking the Union 

advance under Steele. 

For his services General Maxey was made a Maj or General. In the 

Spring of 1865 he was placed in command of a cavalry division, but with 

the close of the war, his command was disbanded May 29, 18659 The 

article continued: 

"General Maxey returned to Paris, where before the war he had 

built a home in the southern part of the city. This house still 

stands, one of the most notable examples in this section of fine 

old southern architecture. 

"General Maxey, after declining an appointment as District Judge, 

returned to the practice of law. He was elected to the Senate of 

the United States January 27, 1874. He was elected to a second 

term in 1880. 11 

T~e Maxey home at Paris is a veritable museum depicting the art 

of gracious living in the nineteenth century. It has been carefully 

maintained at great expense by the Long family since the death of 

General and Mrs. Maxey. 

Mrs. Long ccntinues to maintain it, despite the enormous amount 

of time and energy required to supervise the work of a limited staff. 

Every effort has been made to leave it practically unchanged from the 



way the Maxey1s left it. 

After a few hours visit with ¥,rs. Long and Miss Sallie Lee Light­

foot, her lifelong companion, the General's presence seems to be hover­

ing in the shadows. 

The house is furnished with fine old walnut and mahogany furni­

ture, and each room contains mementos of some phase of General Maxey•s 

career, in addition to other members of the family. 

In the enormous entrance hall which extends the length of the 

house to the kitchen area, are pictures of George and Martha Washington, 

a sampler made at the Female Academy in Fallatin, Tennessee in 1829, a 

brass tray and candle snuffer, beautiful tables and book cases including 

a walnut letter press formerly in the General's office and now filled 

with letters. These letters, a majority in their original covers, date 

from early 1800's, and without doubt contain a priceless sum of his­

torical data. A century old spinning wheel and a frame containing-Con­

federate money and other mementos are also items a visitor may note. 

The library is filled with books, the General 1 s writing desk and 

chair, a portrait of him over the mantle, and a Spanish sword presented 

by the Alcalde (Mayor) of Mexico City for the General's successful year 

of the occupation of that city after the war. An ink well made of stone 

from the Alamo rests on the. desk. 

The dining room is furnished with beautiful old furniture, silver, 

crystal and china. The chairs were brought from New Orleans and the 

table and sideboard with marble top from England. The dining table 

contains the General's tea service. A portrait of Mrs. Long's mother 

hangs over the sideboard. 

Mrs• Long showed to us a fabulous set of sterling silver in its 

original chest, which was a wedding present to her in 1894. Mrs. Long 

told us that throughout the years, the family had continued to use the 



Maxey family silver; that her set had never been usedti 

The family room, the only addition to the original structure, 

connects the main house with the kitcheno In this sunny area is the 

breakfast-dining area, which has a fireplace with ceramic tile, on 

which is inscribed in blue lettering: 

"Each man's hearth is his golden milestone. In his 

farthest wanderings still he sees it, hears its 

whispering flames, the answering night wind, as he 

heard them when he sat with those who were and are 

not. 11 

On one wall a.re the mounted steer horns which were presented to 

him by Captain Richard King, the founder of the famous King Ranch in 

the Gulf Coast area of Texas. 

The home is surrounded by spacious, well kept grounds. Many of 

the trees were planted when the home was built. 

General and V.ll's. Maxey's daughter, Dora married Henry w. Light­

foot. A daughter, Sallie Lee was born to this uniono 

Mrs. Long wrote to us March 26, 1960 that: 

11 I married Sam Bell Maxey Long in 1894 .. he was General 

¥iaxey's nephew and adopted sone He was born in the home 

General Maxey built in 1866, and he lived in it all his 

life. When I married, my trunk was sent down Church 

Street, and this dear place has been my home ever since. 

"Sallie Lee Light£ oot has also spent most of her life 

in this old house. Her mother died very young, and she 

and my husband were brought up as brother and sister. 

General Maxey died in 1895, ¥.l!'s. Maxey died in 1908 and 

my husband died in 1948. Sallie Lee and I have lived 

together in this old .home more than fifty years., 11 



(The Maxey family history which follows has come to light by 

continuing research since the publication in 1961 of the first 

volume of this work.) 

(4) WILLIAM MAXEY and his wife, NANCY WILLIAMS MAXEY, were the 

parents of MA.RY WIILIAMS MAXEY who married (3) VARNEY ANDREWS, JR. 

(4) 1tTIILIAM MAXEY was another VIRGINIA SOLDIER OF THE AMERICAL 

REVOLUTION. He fought the British at Guilford Courthouse, N.C .. on 

March 15., 1781. He was a member of the Fourth Regiment., Virginia 

Militia., which was organized in February., 1781 in Halifax County., Va • ., 

by Captain Anthony Street. (4) WILLIAM MAXEY continued in the militia 

following this battle and took part in the siege at Yorktown which 

brought about the surrender of all the British forces in the South 

under Cornwallis., and the eventual acknowledgement by the British 

government that the United States was a sovereign nation. (Ref: 

National Archieves Section GSA., Washington., n.c • ., file W-8412.) This 

National Archives file contains a complete story of Revolutionary War 

Services of (4) 1tJILLIAM MAXEY; and other interesting details of his 

marriage to Nancy Williams in Halifax County., Virginia., following the 

close of the fighting; their removal to Kentucky., and his death in that 

State in 1833. This file also contains a page from the Maxey family 

bible which contained this entry: 

11VARNEY ANDREWS AND MA.RY 1,J. M.ti.XEY WERE MARRIED SEPT. 10, 1826. 11 

The Maxey family bible also contained the following item: 

(5) 11 JOHN MAXEY, b. 12-8-1787, d~ 6-22-1851, son of (4) 

WILLIAM :MAXEY and NANCY WILL.TAM'S MAXEY •11 

This (.5) JOHN MAXEY had a daughter, MARY ANDREiJ1JS MAXEY, who 

married Thomas Lightfoot. Thomas Lightfoot had three daughters, 

Martha., who married G. w. Morgan; Mary, and Dora, and one son, 
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Henry w. Lightfoot, who never married. Martha Lightfoot Morgan 

and Mary Lightfoot were living in 1963 on stately old Church Street, 

in Paris, Texas. 

The original manuscript of this work includes much genealogical 

data respecting the MAXEY, the LIGHTFOOT, and the BELL families, not 

included here for lack of space., This data will be made available to 

those interested upon receipt of requesto 
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CHAPI'ER VI 

(4) EDWIN JONES ANDREWS - This second born son of (5) Mary 

Williams Maxey and (3) Varney Andrews, Jr., was born January 16th, 

1830, in Monroe County, Kentucky. When he was three years of age, 

in 1833, the family moved across the Cumberland River into Jackson 

County, Tennessee. Hegre\~ to manhood on his father's farm near 

Celina, Tennessee. 

On October 30, 1851 he married Burnetta Fowler, born April 19, 

1837 in Jackson County, Tennessee. Children born to this union were: 

(5) Eugene Rollin, b. 10-10-1852, in Jackson County, Tenn. d. 1931 

(5) Harvey Wilson, b. 2-22-1854, in Jackson County, Tenn. 

(5) Laura, b. 12-11-1855, in Jackson County, Tenn. d. ll-18-1938 

(5) SAMUEL VARNEY, b. 1-31-1858, in Jackson County, Tenn. 

d. 1-22-1943, at Dallas, Texas. 

(5) Patrick Henry, b. 12-16-1859, in Grayson County, Texas 

(5) Martha Oglesby Burnetta, b. 12-9-1861, d. 10-20-1862, in 

Grayson County, Texas. 

Burnetta FO".'fler Andrews, mother of these children, died 9-29-

1862, at the home of her sister Martha Oglesby at Plano, Texas. 

Bodies of the mother and her infant daughter were buried two miles 

east of Plano. We have been unable to locate the grave sites. 

At the outbreak of the War between the States, (4) Edwin Jones 

Andrews joined a regiment organized by Judge J.M. Hurt of Grayson 

County. He was at scenes of action in the early days of the war and 

was a First Lieut. In Burnet 1s Battalion at Port Hudson on the lower 

Mississippi River during the bombardment of that place by Admiral 

Farragut's fleet. Naval Lieut. George Dewey, later to become Admiral 

Dewey, and famous for his command in Manilla Harbor, "You may fire 

when ready, Gridley," was forced to take to the water when his ship 
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was set on fire by Confederate gunfire. 

(4) Edwin Jones Andrews served throughout the war under the over­

all command of General Samuel Bell Maxey. During the war years, his wife 

until her death in 1862, and his children lived at Plano, Texas, at the 

home of her sister Martha Fowler Oglesby, wife of L. W. Oglesby, who 

brought his family to Texas in 1859 from Jackson County, Tennessee. 

The home in which they all lived throughout the War Between the States 

was still standing in 1960, unoccupied, and of course in poor condition. 

A letter written by L. W. Oglesby, dated May 2, 1858, from Plano, 

Texas, to (4) Alvin Rufus Andrews in Celina, Tenn., contained the infor­

mation that 11E. J. Andrews and family left Celina, Tenn., on April 8, 

1858, on the move to Texas." 

The manner of this move was unusual even for that day and age. 

A steam powered river boat was chartered and all the household goods, 

equipment of every kind including a steam powered saw mill, and all the 

persons of the (4) Edwin Jones Andrews family and the L. Butler family, 

and all the servants of both families were loaded on board. The boat 

took off on the Cumberland River for the trip to Grayson County, Texas. 

The route of travel after leaving the Cumberland River, was via the 

Tennessee, the Ohio and the Mississippi Rivers and finally up the Red 

River. The landing took place about where Denison, Texas is now located. 

My father, (5) SAMUEL VARNEY ANDREWS, was just over two month old 

when this trip began. The arrival date in Texas is unknown, but father 

always said he was three months of age when he was brought to Texas. 

(4) Edwin Jones Andrews operated the saw mill in Grayson County 

for a short period and then set up farming operations two miles east 

of Howe, Grayson County, Texas. 

Following the closing of the War Between the States in 1865 he 

resumed operation of the farm and not until 1868 did his young family 
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of children have a mother in the home. They were critical years for 

ths young children. It is quite certain that none of the children re­

ceived formal schooling during the four years of the war. There can be 

no doubt that their Aunt, Martha Fowler Oglesby, did everything she could 

to teach them the basic courses, while they were with her at Plano. After 

their father returned from the war and the family reassembled at the farm 

home, the responsibility for their schooling fell upon him. From all I 

was ever able to learn, he was totally unequipped to face up to such a 

responsibility. Since the farm operation was likewise beyond his ca­

pacity, he probably could not think about schooling for his children. In 

any event, none of the five surviving children received more than a 

smattering of formal education, unless it was Laura, the only daughter, 

In 1868 he married Mary Elizabeth Abernathy, who was born in Giles 

County, Tennessee, in 1838, daughter of Richard Abernathy, son of Jessee 

Abernathy and Alice, daughter of Alexander Tarpley. Mary Elizabeth Aber-

nathy became step daughter of Mrs. Sally Frye Abernathy, who owned a farm 

near Springfield, Mo4 There were two other step-children, Frank and 

Cattie. In 1861 Ivirs • .ti.bernathy married Charles Carlton who was born in 

Eythorne, County Kent, England August 25, 1821. Charles Carlton was the 

son of Charles and Mary Coveney Carlton. Charles, the son came to Ameri­

ca early in the 19th century, and being a highly skilled mechanical engi­

neer, superintended the construction of a railroad from New Orleans to 

Lake Pontchartrain. 

After the marriage at Springfield a school, which Carlton had es­

tablished, had to be suspended because of the chaos which followed the 

outbreak of the War Between the States. The entire household, (about 25 

of them including Mrs. Sally Frye Carlton's servants) reached Texas in 

November, 1861. In 1862 Carlton established a school in Dallas, Texas, 

using the second floor of a blacksmith shop for a school room. Using a 



loom made of scrap material by her husband. Mrs~ Carlton made the 

clothing required by the entire household and had enough to spare 

to obtain by barter coffee, sugar and other food stuffs otherwise 

unobtainable. 

In 1865 Carlton established a school near Kentuckytown, in 

Grayson County, near the Edwin Jones Andrews farm home., In 1867 

he was pursuaded to establish a school at Bonham, Texas, which he 

operated the remained o.f his life., (Ref: The Life and Influence 

of Charles Carlton, by Kenneth M. Hay.) 

In 1890 the Edwin Jones Andrews farm in Grayson County was 

disposed of and the family moved to Western Texas., After a few 

years, all of the family, except Patrick Henry Andrews, returned 

to Grayson County. Edwin Jones Andrews died at Sherman, Grayson 

County, in 1900., 

Since many of the grandchildren of Edwin Jones Andrews are 

still living when this is written, this record will be concerned 

only with a listing of those descendants whose names are knowno 

The listing follows: 

(5) EUGENE ROLLIN ANDREi~S, be 10-10-1851, d. 1931. 

Married Jane Boyd, b. 7-20-1854, d~ 3-3-1936, 

daughter of William Hamilton Boyd and Isabella 

Frances Boyd,, 

ISSUE: 

(6) Burnetta Belle Andrews, b. 10-19-1878, d .. d.s.p. 

(6) Mary Effie Andrews, b. 6-20-1883; married George 

Thomas Jewell, b. 7-21-1877, d. 1-15-1957. 

ISSUE: 

(7) Lucy Jewell, b. 8-16-1914; married George Key. 
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ISSUE: (8) Miles Key, b. • -----
(7) Frances Jewell, b. 10•3-1917; m. John R. Pace. 

Lived in Tulsa, Oklahoma, in 1963. 

(7) Joseph Eugene Jewell, b. 5-21-1921. 

(6) Lucy Rollin Andrews, b~ 10-22-1885; m~ 11-11-1921, 

Joseph Burnsides Moore~ ISSUE: 

(7) Mary Jane Moore, b~ 9•3-1918; m. 3-4-1944, 

'William Howell Cloyd, b • 9-16,,1916. ISSUE: 

(8) Carol Sue, b. 7-20-1947; (8) Barbara Ann, 

b., 4-18-1951; (8) William Howell Cloyd, Jr., 

b. 4-18-1951. Lived in Dallas, Texas, in 1963. 

(7) Caroline Moore., b. 12-28-1919; m. 7-19-1946, Henry 

Sheridan Broadstone, Jr.; ADOPTED: 

(8) Henry Sheridan Broadstone., III, b. 12-13-1953; 

(8) Mary Beth Broadstone, b. 5-1-1958. 

This family lived in Dallas in 1963a 

(6) Curtis Lee Andrews, b .. 8-17-1888, at Sherman, Texas. 

d. 4-2-1942 at Dallas, Texas; m. Alice Thomson, b. 

9-1888, d. 2-2-1945~ ISSUE: 

(7) Curtis Lee Andrews., Jr., b" 3-26-1912 at Dallas; 

m. 10-16-1937 Billie Roark, b. 7-19-1915. ISSUE: 

(8) Liru;la Lee Andrews, b. 12-20-1938; me B-4-1962., 

Gene Bently at Shreveport, La. (8) Curtis Lee 

Andrews, III, b. 3-24-1951. (7) Curtis Lee Andrews, 

Jr., and family lived at Palestine, Texas in 1963. 

(7) Gladys Thomson Andrews., b. 6-16-1914, m. Jack Fant 

Tarut; ISSUE: (8) Jack Fant Tarut, Jr., b. 

1-10-1947; (8) Richard Lewis Tarut, b. 2-1949. 

(6) Albert Fowler Andrews, b. 4-16-1891, Sherman, Texas. 
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(S) !.AURA ANIREWS., b. 12-ll-1855, d. 11-18-1938J m. 

11~18-1871, Jarnes Harvey Foster, b. 12-9-1840, in 

Virginia; d. 4-28-1915. ISSUE: 

(6) Burnetta Gaynes Foster, b. 9-12-1873, d. 

me 6-27-1895 Edwin Palk. ISSUE: 

(7) Annetta Palk, b. 7-23-1897, at Archer City, Texas. 

m. 2-28-1920 at Hollis., Oklahoma, Perry Doolittle., 

b. 12-29-1894., at Montrose., Colorado; ISSUE: 

(8) Madeline Fay Doolittle, b. 11-26-1920, m. 3-15-

1937, at Hollis., Oklahoma, Lloyd Stone; ISSUE: 

(9) John Perry Stone., b. 5-1-1944., at Hollis, Okla.; 

(9) Martin Bradley Stone, b. Hollis, Okla., 11-29-

1946; (9) David Lloyd Stone., b. Plainview'., Texas., 

ll-23•1953. 

(8) Earl Neil Doolittle., b• 8-J..3-1923; m. 8-16-1941 

-Tresia Davia, b. 6-27-1925 at Dodson, Texas; ISSUE: 

(9) Michael Neil Doolittle, b. 7-28-1943, at Hollis, 

Oklahoma, m. 2-10-1960 Jo Ann Bessie of Sparks, 

Nevada. (9) Pat Anthony Doolittle, b. 8-21-1946 

at Wichita Falls., Texas. 

(8) Lloyd Waldo Doolittle, b. 6•21-1934; m. 12-26-

1954 at Hollis, Oklahoma, Joan Patton. Two children 

died in infancy. 

(7) Bertha Palk, b. 10•25-1898, at Archer City., Texas; 

m. 12-31•1917 at Hollis, Oklahoma, George Hervey; 

ISSUE: (8) George Henry Hervey, b. 10-30-1918; 

m. 1941 at New London., Conn., Thelma ____ ; 

ISSUE: ( 9) Treasure Fay• ( 8) Edi th Louise Hervey., 

b. 7-22-1921, me 11-29-1941 at Hollis, Oklahoma., 



Alfred F. Burch; ISSUE: (9) Bill Tom Burch; (9) Joe 

Dale Burch; (9) Buddy Lynn Burch. (8) Elmer Francis 

Hervey, b. 4-29-1924, m. at Dodson, Texas, Virginia 

Stewart, ISSUE: (9) Douglass; (9) Terri; (9) Tena. 

(8) Walter Wayne Hervey! b. 8-18-1930; m. Mu"!:'iel 

Plumbo, b. 2-2-1931; ISSUS: (9) Michael Wayne Hervey, 

b. 2-29-1948; (9) Richard Allen Hervey, b. 4 ... 23-1951; 

(9) Gary Dewayne Hervey, b. 10-3-1954; (9) Joel Lee 

Hervey, b. 12-28-1956; (9) Kevin Scott He~vey, b. 4-

24-1958; (9) Theodore R. Hervey, b. 10-9-1959. 

(8) Norma Jean Hervey, b. 6-15-1933; m. Eddie Holecko 

at Dallas, Texas; ISSUE: (9) Mary Holecko; (9) Louise 

Holecko. 

(7) William James Palk, b. Hollis, Oklahoma, 9-12-1900; 

m. 11-9-1921 at Hollis, Oklahoma, Beulah Newman: 

ISSUE: (8) William James Palk, Jr., b. 11-1-1922; 

m. Mary Tom Clay at Fort Worth, Texas; ISSUE: (9) 

_Cyndy Palk, (8) Albert Edwin Palk, b. 10-2-1924 at 

Breckenridge, Texas; m. Ruth Buttman at Monohans, 

Texas; ISSUE: (9) Anne Palk; (9) Randy Palk; (9) 

Beth Palk. 

(7) Albert Henry Palk, b. 4-17-1904 at Hollis, Oklahoma; 

m. Myrtle Thompson, 8-1926; ISSUE: (8) Betty Joe 

Palk, b. 6-10-1927 at Breckenridge, Texas; m. Bill 

Nellis; ISSUE: (9) John Nellis, (9) Cyndy Nellis. 

All data concerning the Burnetta Foster Palk family was supplied 

from family records by (7) Cleo Eva Volberding and (7) Annetta Palk 

Doolittle, with the co-operation of other members of the Foster and 

Palk families. 



(6) Edwin Foster, b. 4-1-1876; ro. Elizabeth Rennie. 

d. s. p. 

(6) Arthur Harlan Foster, b. 6-19-1878, d. 1911 at 

Saratoga, Texas; m. Ella Russell; ISSUE: (7) James 

Harlan Foster, b. 12-12-1912; m. 12-24-1926 at Hollis, 

Oklahoma, Aurelia Jones; ISSUE: (8) Fernella Foster, 

b. 9-29-1927; (8) Virginia Foster, b. 7-30-1930; (8) 

James Harlan Foster, Jr. b. 9-8-19)2. 

(6) Walter Wayne Foster, b. 2-8-1881, at Era, Texas; 

ro. 5-6-1908 Loula Cook, b. 11-29-1881 at Burnet, 

Texas; ISSUE: (?) James Lewis Foster, b. 3-7~1909 

at Midland, Texas; m. Lou Ellen Smith, b. 3-19-1909 

at Tyler, Texas. These two families lived in Wichi­

ta Falls, Texas, where they have for several decades 

operated a highly successful oil well equipment manu­

facturing business. 

(6) Verna Henrie Foster, b. 3-15-1890 at Era, Texas, 

d. 6-14-1959 at Wichita Falls, Texas; m. 12-20-1908 

Elden West at Denton, Texas. Elden West was b. 3-

17-1886 at Denton, Texas; ISSUE: (7) Cleo Eva Laura 

West, b.10-25-1912 at Mangum, Oklahoma; m. 3-6-1932 

Earl w. Volberding, b. 6-18-1908 at Watseka, Illi­

nois; ISSUE: (8) Gary Wesley Volberding, b. 4-23-

1938 at Orange, California; m. 8-30-1960 Jerry 

Janice Johnson, b. 10-3-1941 at Ft. Worth, Texas. 

ISSUE: 

(9) John Wesley Volberding, be 9-17-1961. 

(6) May Belle Foster, b. 7-31-1892; m. 8-19-1912 - O. M. 

Gould. This couple was living in Granfield, Okla-



horn.a in 1963. 

(5) PATRICK HENRY ANDREWS, b. 12-16-1859, in Grayson County, 

Texas, d. 1-6-1927, Plainview, Texas. Married 10-12-1891, 

Louise Scott at Albany, Texas. ISSUE: 

(6) Z-enna Pearl Andrews, b. 8-8-1892; m. Elam Lewis, 

3-22-1909. ~: (7) Roscoe Vernon Lewis, b. 1-29-

1910; m. Lucy Katherine Fisher, 12-23-1941. ISSUE: 

( 8) Ted Fi sh er Lewis ; ( 8) Vernon Lewis; ( 8) Don Lewis; 

(8) Sue Beth Lewis. (7) Carl Thad Lewis, b. 1-19-1911, 

m. Lucy Katherine Sutton~ 

(6) Rollo Guy Andrews, bn 4-30-1897, d. 10-9-1944; m. 1926 

Mildred Marsh. ISSUE: 

(7) Arnold Lee Andrews, b~ 1-6-1927; m. Johnny Faye 

McDaniel; ISSUE~ -
(8) Lee Andrews, b. 12-22-1949; (8) Beverly 

Andrews, bo 5-14-1954. 

(6) Thomas Edwin (Ted) Andrews, b. 5-26-1898, d. 3- 9-1962; 

married Ora Cross, who survived him and lived in Plain­

view, Texas in 19630 ISSUE: 

(7) Kenneth Warren Andrews, bo 5-24-1924; married 

Peggy Joyce McDaniel,. ISSUE: 

(8) Tommy Andrews, b. 8-5-1946; (8) Kathleen 

Andrews, b. 6-18-1951; (8) McDaniel Andrews, 

b. 3-26-1953; (8) Randall Scott Andrews, b. 

5-13-1955. 

(7) Inez Andrews, b. 12-26-1926; m. Herbert Spencer 

Hilburn, Jr.; ISSUE: (8) Herbert Spencer Hilburn, 

III, b. 2-18-1950; (8) Caroline Spencer Hilburn, b. 

7-29-1952; (8) Ted Andrews Hilburn, b. 10-1-1955. 
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( 6) THO:fvM.S EDHIN (TED) iUIDREWS whose family history next 

preceded this page, served Plainview and Hale County, Texas as an 

officer of the law for tM.rty years. He died while serving his 

fifth consecutive term as the elected Sheriff of his county. He 

established a state wide reputation for his quiet, evenhanded ad­

ministration of his duties as a law enforcement officer. At his 

death the Plainview Herald eulogized him editorially. The column 

length editorial concluded with these words: 

11 To the tradition of fine sheriffs of the Southwest, Ted 

Andrews affixed an image of a gentleman and citizen who 

could manage the lawman's job vr.i.th the simple suasion of 

a pleasant man who meant business and tended strickly to 

same. 11 

Other sons of (5) PATRICK HENRY ANDREHS and LOUISE SCOTT ANDREfJS: 

(6) RALPH CIARK ANDREWS, b. 5-29-1902, a. 6-3-1957; m. 

Louise Templeton. ISSUE: 

(7) Stanley Maurice Andrews., b. 3-26-1926. 

(7) Joe Bob Andrews., b. 12-14-1943. 

(7) Iris Lavelle Andrews, b. 11-11-1927; m. 9-8-1946., 

Frank Douglas Standefer. ISSUE: 

(8) Kay Standefer, b. 9-20-1949. 

(8) Pamela Standefer., b. 3-1-1951. 

(8) Janey Standefer., b. 7-21-1952s 

(8) Debbie Standefer, b. 8-6-1957. 

(8) Ralph Douglas Standefer, b. 8-8-1958. 

( 6) RALPH CLARK ANDRElll)'S, during his lifetime a building 

contractor, died a few hours after giving blood to 

save the life of an employee. His widow, Louise 

Templeton Andrews., in 1963 lived in Plainview, Texas, 

the family home for many years. 
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(6) Rupert Walton Andrews, b., 1-8-1894; m,., 8~,7-1917., 

Fern Winn at Plainview, Texas. ISSUE: 

(7) Walton Winn Andrews, b., 5-8-1918, at Plainview., 

Texas; m. 8-6-1947, at Amarillo, Texas, Wilma 

Marie Wiard. ISSUE: 

(8) Linda Louise Andrews, b. 6-23-1948 at 

Amarillo8 

(7) Bruce Dale Ar.drews, b,, 10 .. ,5-1922 at Plainview, 

Texas; m. 11-23-1945, Frances Omega Singleton 

at Texarkana, Texas. ISSUE: 

(8) Caroline Andrews, b. at Amarillo, Texas, 

9-17-1948. 

(8) Amy Katherine Andrews, b. at Amarillo, 

Texas., 5-5-1950., 

(8) Dona Lynn Andrews, b. 4-16-1953 at Amarillo. 

We continue with the sons of (4) EDWIN JONES ANDREWS and his 

second wife, Mary Elizabeth Abernathy: 

(5) FRANJ( A. ANDREWS, b. ca 1870, m. Laura Milam., We were 

unable to obtain this family history., It may be re­

corded on this page if desired by any interested family 

member. 



(5) CHARLES CARLETON ANDREWS, b., 5-5-1870, d. 8-2-1952; m. 

Emma Rucker, b. 2-3-1872, do 3~20•1957. ISSUE: 

(6) Hallie Andrews, b. 8-22-1899 at Van Alstyne, Texas; 

m.Luther Grady Plyler of Miss• ISSUE : 

(7) Charles Grady Plyler, b. 1-26-1933 at 11ission, 

Texas; m. Charlotte Gibbs. ISSUE: 

(8) Becky, (8) Randy. Dr$ Charles G. Plyler 

and family lived in 1963 at Ganado, Texas. 

(6) Edwin Rucker Andrews, b~ 3-23-1901, d. 2-21-1960; m. 

Bernice Rowland. ISSUE: 

(7) James Carleton Andrews, b. 7-30-1942; (7) Don 

Edwin Andrews, be 7-12-1944. This family lived 

in 1963,in Tyler, Texas. 

(6) Bessie Andrews, b. 1-24-1903 at Van Alstyne; m. 

12-21-1923, Ernest ~Tilton Jackson at Houston, Texas. 

Dr. Ernest ,:,J. Jackson and family lived many years at 

Beaumont, Texas, where he was Superintendent of 

Schools. ISSUE: 

(7) Betty Jean Jackson, b. 1-28-1926 at Beaumont; 

m. 1947, Lloyd Alton Shurtle.ff of Greeenville, 

Texas. ISSUE: 

(8) Jerry Lloyd Shurtlett, 7-22-1953 in Greenville; 

(8) Michael Jackson Shurtleff, b. 12-12-1948 at 

Greenville. This family lived in 1963 at 

Greenville, Texas 

(7) Gloria Nell Jackson, be 10-5-1928 at Beaumont, 

Texas; m. 10-21-1961 at Dallas, Texas, James Henry 

Cochran of Austin, Texas. ISSUE: 

(8) Jean Christine Cochran, b. 6-11-1963. This 

family lived at Dallas, Texas, in 1963. 
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(6) Marrde Andrews, b. 10-4-1904 at Van Alstyne; m. 

December 1922, James Taylor Nelsen at Sherman, Texas. 

ISSUE: (7) Bettye.byce Nelson, b. 6-19-1925; m. 

Harold Ray :Martin of Corrirnerce, Texas. ISSUE: 

(8) Theresa Martin, b. 6-10-1948 at Commerce. 

This family lived 1963 at Commerce. 

(6) Gunby Houston Andrews, b. 8-5'-1906 at Van Alstyne; 

m. 1929 Eloise Dawson of Frost, Texas. ISSUE: 

(7) Barbara Andrews, b. 2-12-1935, m. Don Van 

Sickle. They met while both were students at 

the University of Texas at Austin. ISSUE: 

(8) Kaychia Van Sickle; (8) Tichie Van Sickle. 

This family lived in 1963 at Houston, Texas. 

(7) Katherine Andrews., b. 1-12-1943. A student at 

the University or Houston, Texas in 1963. 

(6) Leta Andrews, b. 1-11-1908 at Van Alstyne; m. 

Bennie Ewing 01Brien of Celina, Texas. ISSUE: 

(7) Emma Patricia O'Brien, b. 12-23-1929 at 

Gainesville, Texas; m. James Robert Hurt. 

ISSUE: (8) Keith 01Brient Hurt, b. 6-4-195'8 at 

DaDas, Texas. 

(6) Prentiss Wilson Andrews, b. 3-27-1910 at Mertzon, 

Texas; m. Geraldine Peacock or Beaumont., Texas. 

ISSUE: (7) Michael Craig Andrews, b • 9-29-1934 at 

Beaumont; m. Irene Hunger of Junction., Texas. 

ISSUE: (8) August Scott Andrews, b. 4-16-1959; (8) 

William Terrell Andrews, b. 12•23•1960. (This 

family of Prentiss Wilson Andrews is continued 

next, page.) 
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(7) Linda Andrews, b. 8,Al2-1938 at Bemm1ont, Texas; 

m. Ray Rollins. Adopted Mark Rollins, b. 3-29-1961. 

(7) Prentiss Miles Andrews, b. 3-18-1943 at Beaumont; 

Student in 1963 at North Texas State University, 

Denton, Texas,, 

(5) MARK EJJWIN ANDR.Ef:JS, b. 3-21-1877, Grayson County, Texas, 

de 1-6-1950 at Sherman, Texas; m. Constance Douglas, b. 

4-6-1884 at Sherman, Texas, de 1-1-1946 at Sherman. ISSUE: 

(6) Paul Douglas Andrews, be 1-1-1906 at Sherman; m., Hazel 

May, daughter of Robert Walker May and Elizabeth May 

of Sherman. Hazel May was born 11-11-1908 in Grayson 

Countyft Children born to (6) Paul Douglas Andrews and 

Hazel May Andrews: (7) Paul Douglas Andrews, Jr~, bo 

8-22-1947. This family lived in 1963 at Houston., Texas. 

(5) JAMES RICHARD ANDREWS, b. ___ , de August 1939; m. Fannie 

Jones, b. 1885, d. June 1953. ISSUE: 

(6) Dorothy Marie Andrews, b,. 6-12-1907, m. John V. Kelly,. 

ISSUE: 

(7) John Vincent Kelly, Jr., b. 12-11-1931; m,, Joanna 

Malear, b,_ 2~4·~1935'., ISSUE: 

(8) John Vincent Kelly, III, b,. 5-15-1956 .. 

(8) Patrick Brian, bo 8-3, .. 1960,,.. 

This family lived in 1963 at Arlington, Texas. 

(7) Nancy Frances Kelly, b,, 2-1934; m,. Mitchel Perry,, 

Lived in Alamagorda, N.M., in 1963. 

(6) Richard w. Andrews, b,. 6-13-1908; m .. Dorothy • ---
(6) Mary Nannette Andrews, b. 8-3-1910; m,. Guy Day •. 

(6). Margaret Frances Andrews, b. 11-23-1918; m, Garnet 

Gwyn. 



CHA.Pl'ER VII 

SAMUEL VARNEY ANDREWS 

(5) SAMUEL VARNEY ANDREWS, born 1•31-1858 near Celina., Jackson 

County., Tennessee on the farm of his grandfather., (3) VARNEY ANDREWS., 

JR., and died at Dallas, Texas, January 22., 1943, at the home of his 

youngest daughter., ( 6) LAURA MABEL ANDRE"tTS THOMAS. On December 21, 

1882, he married CARRIE EDNA BOYD, the daughter of William Hamilton 

Boyd and Isabella Frances Eustace Boyd., while both families were 

living in Grayson County, Texas. (Grayson County Marriage Records,) 

The Eustace-Boyd lineage is set out in the next chapter. Children 

born to (5) SAMUEL VARNEY ANDRE\sTS and CARRIE EDNA BOYD ANDREWS were: 

(6) JESSIE }'T..AE ANDREWS, born in Grayson County, 12-6-1883; 

m. 9-19-1930., Earl G. Atkinson. This couple lived in 

Dallas, Texas in 1963. 

(6) WILLIAM ROBERT ANDREWS, born 7-13-1886, Grayson, County; 

m. 6-16-1920 Mahala Elisabeth Trobaugh at Amarillo., 

Texas. ISSUE: 

(7) JOSEPH VARNEY ANDREtfS, b. 6-16-1921 at Amarillo, 

Texas; m. 1-17-1953., Noreen Ayree Colston., b. 

4-24-1930. ISSUE: ( 8) IA UREEN AYRE ANDREWS, b • 

1-19-1961 at Milwaukee, Wisc; (8) By adoption, 

DENISE JOREEN ANDRElvS, bo 2-1-1960. This family 

lived in Tonawanda, N.Y. in 1963. 

(7) EDNA LEE ANDRElvS., b. 1-28-1923; m. 8-28-1952., 

William E. Webb. 

(6) EDNA EARIE ANDREWS, b. 6-24-1891 in Jones County, 

Texas; died at Sherman, Texas, 4-27-1910. 

(6) ELWIN EUSTACE ANDREWS, b. 11-7-1893, in Howard 

County, Texas. 
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(6) LAURA MABEL ANDREWS, born 5-20-1896 in Howard County, 

Texas; m. 6-2-1920 Will Howard Thomas at Amarillo, 

Texas. Will Howard Thomas served in the u.s. Military 

Establishment in World War I. Lived in Dallas., Texas 

in 196 3 • ISSUE : 

(7) William Howard Thomas, Jr., b. 5-10-1921; m •. 

Barbara Anne Haden, b,. 6-20-1927~ ISSUE: 

(8) Terry William Thomas, b. 4-3-1947. 

(8) Georgia Anne Thomas, b. 7-26-1949. 

William Howard Thomas, Jr., served in the U,. s. 

Air Force in World War II. This .family lived in 

Ashville, N.c. in 1963. 

(7) Richard Andrews ~horras, bw 10-2-19340 Served 

in the U.S. Military Establishment in 1958-1959. 

Lived in Dallas, Texas in 1963. 

(6) JAMES RAY ANDREWS, born November 30, 1888, in Grayson 

County, Texas. (See Chapter VIII for the record o.f 

this family.) 
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C HA.PTER VIII 

(6) JAMES RAY ANDREWS - Married 8-28-1919, to Mary Barbara Ewald, 

b. 10-18~1892 at Alexandria~ Virginia, daughter of Leo Joseph 

Ewald and Veronica Zentgraf Ewald, died at Dallas, Texas, 

October 25, 19580 Children born to this union were: 

(7) JAMES RAY ANDREWS, JR~ - born 3"6-1921, at Amarillo, Texas. 

Graduate of McKinley High Schoc,l:i Washington., D .. C ~ and 

attended Southern Methodist University, at Dallas, after 

World War II military serviceo On August 14, 1943, while 

in the military service he married Dorothy Ellen Hankwitz, 

daughter of Dr., Paul Hankwi tz and Mathilda Hankwi tz, of 

Milwaukee, Wisc~, born respectively in Germany and Wis­

consin. Dorothy Hankwitz graduated from University of 

Wisconsin at Madison and taught school in Texas prior to 

marriage. ISSUE: 

(8) JAMES RAY ANDREWS, III - Born 2~2-1945 at Milwaukee, 

Wisconsin. 

(8) PAUL EIWARD ANDREWS - Born 5-18-1946 at Dallas, 

Texas~ 

This family has lived in Dallas since 1946~ 

. (7) }ITARY BARBARA ANDREWS - Born 8-18-1923 at Alexandria, 

Virginia~ Attended private schools in Alexandria and St. 

Paul's High School, Washington, D. c. Graduated .from 

Woodrow Wilson High School, Dallas. Married 8-12-1944, 

at San Marc·os Air Force Base, San Marcos, Texas, Marsh 

E. Lefler, b. 6-10-1923 at Keokuk, Iowa, son of Edgar 

and Irene (Marsh) Lefler. Graduated from Iowa State 

College, Ames, Iowa. ISSUE: 

(8) Mary Marsha Lefler, b. Mt. Vernon, Iowa, 6-25-1946. 



(8) Catherine Diane Lefler, bn Mte Vernon, Iowa, 1-5-1948. 

(8) Michael Joseph Lefler, b. Mt. Vernon, Iowa, 2-16-19490 

(8) Stephen Andrews Iefler, bn Houston, Texas, 9-25-1951. 

(8) David Alan Lefler, b. Ames, Iowa, 2-11~1956. 

(8) Gregory Lefler, b. Phelps, Wisconsin, 1-11-19590 

Marsh E. Lefler was a United States Forest Ranger, and 

this family was living in Watersmeet, Michigan, in 1960e 

He served in the USAF in World War II~ 

(7) JOHN JOSEPH ANDREWS - Born 6-25-1925 at Alexandria, Vae 

Graduated from Woodrow Wilson High School, Dallas, and 

from Texas State University at Austin, Texas8 Served in 

the United States Air Force in Europe in World War II. 

Married October 5, 1945, to Marjorie O'Connor, be April 

20, 1925, in Helena,Arkansas, daughter of Daniel Flurry 

O'Connor and Margaret O'Connor. Graduate of Woodrow 

Wilson High School, Dallas, and attended Texas Christian 

University at Fort Worth, Texasc ISSUE: 

(8) Laura Lee Andrews, b. 8-2-1946, at Dallas~ 

(8) Mary Margaret Andrews, b~ 2-3-1951, at Dallas~ 

This family was living at Irving, Dallas County, in 1960. 

(7) LEO ANTHONY ANDREi~S - b. 1-1-1928 at Alexandria, Virginia. 

Graduated from Jesuit High School, Dallas, and attended 

Southern Methodist University in Dallas. Married 8-1-1952 

to Melba. Jean Roark, b. 12-14-1934, daughter of Roscoe and 

Lucile Roark. Attended Dallas High School. ISSUE: 

{8) Deanna Lee Andrews, born 4-12-1953, at Dallas. 

{8) Deborah Lynn Andrews, born 4-12-1953, at Dallas. 

(8) Larry Wayne Andrews, born 3-29-1956, at Dallas. 

(8) Gary Allen Andrews, born 3-29-1956, at Dallas. 
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Leo Anthony Andrews served an enlistment in the U. S. 

Army in 1950-1951. 

Since this record is in no sense an autobiography, it will con­

tain only the salient facts of the life of the family of James Ray and 

Mary Barbara Andrews. A member of the family of a later generation 

may wish to add to the story. If so, ample records will be available 

for the purpose. This original manuscript, with family records, photos, 

official documents and personally written letters by various members of 

the family will be bound in a single volume and left in the possession 

of the family. 

My education began in a small country school in Howard County, 

'rexas, and was completed at Sherman Texas. ~ last 

year teacher was Miss Martha (Mattie) Pullen., a dignified, gray haired 

lady for whom I had great admiration and vast respect. I had the great 

pleasure of visiting with her about 19SO, and was much surprised when· 

she remembered me as a student, even giving me quite a bit of the 

personal history of many of my classmates. She became an institution 

in Sherman., and reeehtly a new school building was erected in Sherman 

and named the Pullen School. 

On the advice of my doctor following an appendicitis operation, 

I went in 1910 to Amarillo, Te:x;as to live. It was from Amarillo in 

1918 that I was inducted into the u. s. Army. Boot training took 

place in a training unit at College Station, Texas on the campus of 

Texas A & M College. From there I was shipped to Camp Joseph E. 

Johnston near Jackscnville., Florida. 

Shortly after arrival at that base, I entered the Officer's 

Training School and was commissioned October 30, 1918 a Second Lieut. 

in the u. s. Army. 
When I was notified that I had been commissioned, I was without 
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funds with which to equip myself with a uniform and other clothing which 

had to be obtained to replace the GI clothing I was wearinge In this 

crises, my sister, Laura Mabel Andrews, who was then living in Amarillo, 

came to my rescue with a generous loane Without her assistance I could 

never have become and "Officer and Gentlemen,. 11 

Before my discharge in June 1919, duty assignments included Fort 

Meade, Md., Camp Dix, N. J., and Fort Humphries, Va,. It was while I was 

on duty at Fort Humphries that I met Mary Barbara Ewald at a da~ce given 

at Alexandria by a social service organization. 

We were married August 28, 1919, at the home of Mary's mother, and 

went to Amarillo to live. In 1923, we returned to Alexandria and lived 

there until 1934, when we moved to Washington, D. C,, We lived in 

Washington until 1940.The u. s. Department of Agriculture transferred 

me permanently to Dallas, Texas, in that year. 

In the next decade our children completed tneir education, the two 

oldest boys served in the military establishment in World War II, and 

they and their sister, Mary Barbara Andrews, married and established 

homes of their own. 

:r.zy- retirement from the Federal Service took place November 30, 

1956. Mary Barbara Ewald Andrews became ill one week later, and twenty 

two months later she was taken from us. She left a family deeply in 

debt to her for a lifetime of patient sacrifice and devotion. The moral 

and physical welfare of her family was her single aim in life, and her 

loss was a stunning blow to every member of her family. 

Interment was at Calvary Hill Cemetery, Dallas., A suitable monu­

ment was erected over the grave site, and provisions made for my final 

resting place by her side. 

In May, 1959, I had the great good fortune to meet Mary Croft 

Smith McMurry, widow of Jess A. McMurry, who was killed in an airplane 



accident in 1956~ Through our mutual interest in matters historical 

our friendship grew and on October 10, 1959 we were married in her home 

in Dallas. For the record, her son and daughter, and my three sons and 

my daughter, warmly approved the marriage. 

This completes this record of the Andrews family, from 1685 in 

Colonial Virginia to 1960 in Texas. For my children and their children, 

there follow other chapters containing an outline of the Boyd-Eustace 

families, from whom I am descended through my mother. 
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CHAPTER IX 

THE EUSTACE - BOYD FAMILIES 

Information concerning the Eustace and Boyd families was contained 

in family records maintained by Isabella Frances Eustace Boyd, and con­

tinued by Carrie Edna Boyd Andrews, and her daughter., Laura Mabel Andrews, 

and various other records. A diary was maintained by John o. Eustace, 

Jr~, born 6-5-1795 and died subsequent to 1875 in Ralls County, MoQ This 

diary contained the birth dates of the children of Isabella Frances 

Eustace Boyd and William Ha~i:ton Boyd, our grandparents, who came to 

Texas by wagon train in 1875. 

The family records show the birth and death dates of several gener­

ations of the Eustace family. But we have no record of the time of their 

arrival in America from Ireland. Family tradition is strong that John 

Eustace., born in 1766 in Dublin, Ireland, was a University Professor in 

Dublin; that the family came to America after 1800; that his son., John 

Eustace, Jr.,, was also a teacher or professor, and at one time taught in 

schools in Washington, D. c. We know he was a scholar, because the diary 

which he maintained and which we have, contains constant Latin and Greek 

words and phrases, as well as numerous classical quotations. We hope to 

find some family history in Dublin when we visit Dublin in April or MayJ 

1961. 

The genealogical data available in family records, information ob­

tained from living descendants, and from u. s. Census records, follow: 

(1) JOHN EUSTACE, SR., b. 7-16-1766, Dublin, Ireland, d. 3-25-1828. 

Married Prudence Eustace, born 7-23- , Ireland, d. J-23-1823. 

ISSUE: 

(2) Jane Eustace, b. 1792, Ireland. 

(2) Thomas Eustace, b. 17981 Ireland. 

(2) Maurice Eustace, b. 1800, Ireland. 
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(2) Charlotte Eustace, b. 1805, Ireland. 

(2) John Eustace., Jr.,., bo 6-5-1795., Ireland., Married Mary 

Wheeler., b. 9-1-1797, Ireland, d. 9m7•l859. 

ISSUE: 

(3) Mary Wheeler Eustace, b. 9-1-1820., d. 2-2-1822. 

(3) John Oliver Eustace., b. 11-13-1823. 

(3) Charlotte Julia Eustace., b~ 11~29-1825., de 4-6-1826., 

(3) Elizabeth Wister Eustace., b., 2-15-1827., d. 3- -1907., 

*(3) Isabella Frances Eustace, b~ 7-31-.. 1829., Pennsylvania.i 

d. 12-4-1894, Ardmore., Oklahoma., 

(3) Thomas Maurice Eustace, b. 7- -1831., de infancy. 

(3) Carol:i.ne Eustace, b. 2·~25-1833., d., 2-22-1915. 

(3) Charlotte Jane Eustace., b0 8°~7-1837, d;, 8~- -1840. 

(3) William Edwin Eustace., bo 8-10""1840. ISSUE: 

(4) Eugene Eustace 

(4) Will Eustace 

*(3) ISABELLA FRANCES EUSTACE - Married 1851., William 

Hamilton Boyd, b. 3-12-1825., in Kentucky, d. 2-5-1907, 

at Sherman., Texas., ISSUE: 

(4) Alice Ann Boyd, b., 3··15-1852., Ralls County., Mo • ., 

d., 1934., Married Jai.~es True Ellis., b. 11-1-1829. 

ISSUE:: Mary Blanche Ellis, b. 6-6-1872'; Annie 

Belle Ellis, b. 5-26-1874; Jennie Bertha Ellis, 

b. 9-16-1876; Carrie Cynthia Ellis, b. 3-4-1878; 

Beulah Ellis, b., 4-30-1880; (her daughter is Ruth 

Fay Holder, Grand Junction, Colorado)., Lulu Grace 

Ellis., b~ 4-11-1883, m~ (1st) --- Phillips., (2nd) 

Sam Kitch, has one son~ and lives at Rocky Ford, 

Colorado,, 



(4) Mary Jane Boyd, b. 7-21-1854, Ralls County., Moo, 

d. 3-3-1936., Oklahoma. Married Eugene Rollin 

Andrews., (See Chapter VI for complete story). 

(4) Elizabeth Eustace Boyd., b. 10-21-1857, d~ 7-16-

1907~ d. s. P• She was born in Ralls County., Mo. 

(4) William Samuel Boyd, b. 7-8-1859., Ralls County, 

Missouri. 

(4) CARRIE EDNA BOYD., b. 10-10-1861., Ralls County., 

Mo~, d. 12-3-1941., Amarillo., Texas. Married 

Samuel Varney Andrews. (See Chapter VII for com­

plete story.,) 

(4) James Ashby Boyd., b. 5-27-1866, Ralls County, Mon 

(4) Alfred Eustace Boyd, b. 12-24-1869., Ralls County., 

Mo • ., d. 4-7-1936., Quanah., Texas. (See Chapter v., 

(4) Robert c. Andrews for record of Alfred Eustace 

Boyd who married Odie Flynt, granddaughter of 

Robert c. Andrews.) 

Nothing is known about the early Boyd family. Lulu Grace Ellis 

Kitch, who in recent years acquired the farm near Center., Missouri, 

owned in the 1860ts by her father., James True Ellis., is authority for 

the following: 

William Hamilton Boyd,-our grandfather., had a brother called 

Singleton Boyd., who had a son, Richard Boyd, who had a son, William 

Elmer Boyd. Part of the estate originally owned by James True Ellis 

is nOW" owned by Bessie Boyd., daughter of William Elmer Boyd and his 

wite, May. Another descendent of Singleton Boyd was Bertha Babb, who 

was living in 196o, at Center., Missouri. 

William Hamilton Boyd joined the Confederate Army at the war's 

outbreak, despite the urgent pleading of his family., his neighbors and 
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his friends. Sentiment was so strong against the Confederacy in his 

community that he was forced to hide out from his home. Our grand­

mother had clandestine meetings with him in the cornfield at night be­

fore he finally departed to the south. They had four children when he 

left., with 0'Ul"7nother a few r:ionths of age. She never saw him 

again until she was nearly five years of age. She had a vivid recol­

lection of his return in rags, having walked from Louisiana to Missouri. 

She saw him enter the front yard, and badly frightened she fled into the 

house and told her mother an old tramp was after her. 

In the family records there is a tattered Confederate Army docu­

ment dated November 3, 1864, signed by 11Capt. w. T. Bond, Co. 11c11 ., 9th 

Mo. Infantry, CSA," Camp Magruder., Shreveport, La., granting a five 

day furlough to 0w. H. Boyd., private., age 38 years., 5 ft. 10 in. high, 

dark complexioned, black hair, by profession a farmer, enlisted 7-29-

1861.11 The furlough was five days and specified that he was permitted 

to visit in Arkansas. 

In 1875 against the advice and pleading of the Eustace and Ellis 

families, he quit Missouri., and moved his family to Grayson County, 

Texas, traveling overland through the Indian Territory (Oklahoma)., 

much of which was inhabited only by Indians. 

Our grandmother, who obviously was an educated woman of re­

finement, wrote a daily diary which described in painful detail, the 

discomforts, the filth, the danger, and her constant dread of impending 

disaster during the entire time. The diary began with the date line 

"Tuesday., October 12, 1875,tt and ended 11November 1211 just one month 

later. Every day's entry revealed in some manner the rears and hopes 

of this woman. The move was obviously much against her better 

judgement.. At journey's end., the family., which included the three 

girls and three boys, camped eight miles south of Sherman, according 
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to the final entry in the diary. Members of the Edwin Jones Andrews 

family, whose farm was adjacent to the camp site, visited the Boyd 

family and offered any needed assistance. This chance meeting led to 

the later union between two of the Andrews men and two of the Boyd 

womene 

The Boyd family lived in Grayson County through 1880, according 

to the u. So Census report of that year. Later they lived near 

Ardmore, Oklahoma, where Isabella Frances Boyd died in 1894. William 

Hamilton Boyd died in Sherman in 1907, 

ADDENDA 

Since the foregoing story of the EUSTACE-BOYD families was 

written in 1960, additional research has developed this new bit of 

information. 

The Philadelphia, Pa., City Directory for the years 1825 

through 1833 listed the names of THOMAS EUSTACE and JOHN EUSTACE, as 

living at 123 South 9th St., and 165 Spruce St., in that city. The 

occupation of each was listed as "teacher"• In 1829 THO:MA.S EUSTACE 

was listed as Reverend T. EUSTACE. JOHN EUSTACE'S name did not ap­

pear in the City Directory after 1833. 

The report of the United States Census for 1850 of Ralls Co., 

Missouri, included the names of JOHN EUSTACE, and five of his sons 

and daughters& The first born son~ John Oliver Eustace was born in 

Ireland in 1824, and the next child, Elizabeth Wister Eustace was 

born in 1826 in Pennsylvania, according to the Census Report. The 

report further indicated that daughters were born to this couple in 

Pennsylvania in 1829 and 1834. A son was born in Missouri in 1840. 

JOHN EUSTACE, the father was listed in the report as "teacher". 

Research has failed to turn up any more information about this 

family •. 
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Martha Thvreatt, 35. 
Marvin K • ., 51. 
Mary, 3, 5, 6. 
Mary Barbara, 90. 
Mary Croft, 9L~. 
Mary Effie, 77. 
Mary Elizabeth, 33, 46, 58, 59. 
Mary Ethel, 61. 
Mary Lou, 38 • 
Mary Margaret., 91. 
Mary Nannette., 87. 
Mattie Thweatt, 23. 
Mary Williams, 30, 41, 46, 47, 
49, so, 51, 58, 64, 65, 66. 
Maurine, 52. 
Maxey, 53. 
Maxey 'H., 51. 
May, 39. 
McDaniel, 82. 
Michael Craig, 86. 

Nancy, 11., 28., 45, 55. 

Patrick Henry 74, 78, 82., 83. 
Patrick J., 49., 50. 
Paul Douglas., 87. 

ANDREWS (continued) 
Paul Douglas, Jr., 87. 
Paul Edward, 90. 
Phoebe, 5. 
Polly, 46, 47. 
Prentiss Miles, 87. 
Prentiss Wilson, 86. 

Ralph Clark, 83. 
Ralph Owen, 61. 
Randall Scott, 82e 
Rice, 47" 
Richard I, 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 47n 
Richard W .. , 87., 
Robert c., 45, 49, 50, 53, 97. 
Rollo Guy, 82" 
Roland,Rowlen, Rowland; 5, 8, 
10, 20. 
Rupert Walton, 84. 
Ruth, 37, 50 .. 

Samuel Varney, 43, 46, 74, 75, 
88, 97. 
Sarah Frances, 61. 
Sarah Shields., 52. 

Ted, 82,. 
Thomas I, 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 52. 
Thomas Edwin, 83. 
Tommy, 82 .. 
Tom v., 23, 35. 

Varn (Dr), 53. 
Varney (1st)., 1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 
9, 10, 11, 12., 14, 17, 18, 19, 
20, 22, 23., 24, 25, 28, 29, 
30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 38, 42. 
Varney, Jr., 11, 41, 42, 43, 
44., 45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 5o, 
51, 58, 64, 72, 74, 88. 
Varney F., 33, 45, 59. 
Varney o., 34, 39. 
Vera Annette, 61. 
Virginia, 34. 
Virginia Thweatt, 34, 39. 

Walton Winn, 84. 
Warren, 39., 
William I, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 
10, 11, 12, 18, 20, 25, 28, 
31, 34. 
William Allen, 45, 47 .. 
William Edwin, 35, 37. 
William o., 23, 34., 35., 38,. 
1,Jilliam Robert., 88 • 
1rTilliam Terrell, 86. 
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ANDRET.,,fS ( continued) 
William Oslin, 34. 
Winnifred, 3. 

Zenna Pearl, 82. 

Arnette, Fairy, 61. 

ARTERBERRY 
Horace H., 55. 
Lou Andrews, 55. 
Mary Elizabeth, 55. 
Melissa A., 55~ 
Moses, 55. 
Nancy, 49, 55. 
Rufus, 55. 
Thomas E., 55. 
Thompson, 55. 

Atkins, Julia, 61. 

ATKINSON 
Carleton Davis, 39. 
Earl G., 88. 
Grace Randolph, 39. 
Harry Blackwell, 39. 
Jessie Mae, 88. 
John Gordon, 39. 
Lincoln Ferdinand, 39. 
Mary Proctor, 39. 
Stanley Harper, 39. 
Thurman Chrystor, 39. 

Auld, Lillian, 39. 

Babb, Bertha, 97. 

BELL 
Langdon c., 2. 
Lucy Pope, 67. 
Capt~. Samuel, 67. 

Bellows, Fannie, 39. 

Belote, Clem A., 55. 

Bently, Gene, 78. 

Bessie, Jo Ann, 79. 

Binford, Mary Lucas, 35, 38. 

BINGHAM 
H. Allen, 51. 
Jo V ., 51. 
Sharon Lynn, 51. 

Bjertness, Lillian, 39. 

BOYD (Family 95 to 99) 
Alfred Eustace, 52, 97., 
Alice Ann, 88, 95, 96. 
Bessie, 97. 
Carrie Edna, 97~ 
Elizabeth Eustace, 97., 
Ina Margaret, 52. 
Isabella Frances, 77, 88, 95, 99. 
James Ashby, 97 
Mary Jane, 77, 97~ 
Maxey Alfred, 528 
Odie, 52,, 
Richard, 97 ,. 
Singleton, 978 
·wm. Hamilton, 77, 88, 96, 97,, 
Wm8 Leonidas, 52,, 
Wm. Samuel, 97,, 

BROADSTONE 
Caroline, 78" 
Henry Sheridan, Jr.,, 78. 
Henry Sheridan, III, 78 .. 
Mary Beth, 78. 

Bryant, A.,M,,, 48 .. 

BUGG 
Angelina, ll. 
Augustine, 11., 
Benjamin, lL 
Elizabeth, 11. 
Jessie, lL, 
John v., 11. 
Lucy, 11,, 
Martha, 11., 
Mary, 11., 
Pamela, 11., 
Sarah, 11. 
Wm,, He, 11. 

Bullock, Missouri, 50o 

BURCH 
Alfred F ., 80. 
Bill Tom, Bo. 
Bobby Lynn, Bo .. 
Joe Dale, Bo. 

BURNET 
Burnetrs Battalion, 74. 
Major James, 55 .. 

Butler, L., 75. 

Buttman, Ruth., 80" 

Bynum, Vinnie., 58 .. 
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CARLTON 
Charles, 76, 77. 
Mary Coveney, 76. 
Sally Frye, 76., 77. 

Carrington, Hirt Johnson, 66. 

Chamberlain, Col. Thomas, 1. 

CHRISTIAN 
David Michael, 59. 
Ellen Kincaid, 59. 
James Emory, 59. 
James Emory, Jr., 59. 
Joseph William, 59. 
Katherine, 59 • 
Martha Jean, 59. 
'Hm. Vaughn, 59. 

. Claiborn, Captain, 14. 

Clay, Mary Tom, 80. 

CLOYD 
Barbara Ann, 78., 
Carol Sue, 78. 
Mary Jane, 78. 
·wm. Howell, 78. 
Wm. Howell, Jr., 78. 

COCHRAN 
Gloria, 85. 
James Henry, 85. 
Jean Christine, 85. 

Colston, Noreen Ayree, 88. 
Cook, Loula, 81. 
Corneal, P.T., 44. 
Cornwallis, Lord, 12, 15, 17, 72. 
Cross, Ora, 82. 

CRCJWE 
Ada, 39. 
Carrie M., 39. 
Susie, 39. 

Daniels, Ella, 47. 
Davis, Teresa, 79. 
Dawson, Eloise, 86. 
Day, Guy, 8 7 • 

DELK 
Cecil, 52. 
Maurine, 52. 
Varney Robert, 52. 

Denton, Marilda Cass, 68. 

DePhillips, Demetra Dora, 59. 
Dewey, Lieut. George, 74" 
Dickerson, Esron, 39. 

DIX 
Lucy Baxter, 3.5. 
John c., 35. 

DOOLITTIE 
Annetta Palk, 79, 80. 
Earl Neil, 79. 
Lloyd Waldo, 79. 
Michael Neil, 79. 
Madeline Fay, 79. 
Pat Anthony, 79. 
Perry, 79. 

Douglas, Constance, 87. 
Dowler, Ralph, 61 • 
Drane, Betty, 38. 

Eatherly, Paradine, 32. 
Eashburn, s., 44. 
Eckenrode, H.J., 67. 
Ellington, Lena, 39. 

ELLIS 
Anna Belle, 96. 
Beulah, 96. 
Carrie Cynthia, 96. 
James True, 96, 97. 
Jennie Bertha, 96. 
Lulu Grace, 96, 97. 
Mary Blanch, 96. 

EUSTACE (Family 95 to 99) 
John Oliver, 52, 95. 

EWAID 
Joseph Leo, 89. 
Mary Barbara, 89, 93. 
Veronica Zentgraf, 90. 

FARNHAM 
Anna Joe, 51. 
Cheryl Louise, 51. 
Clarence, 51. 

Faulkner, Col. Ralph, 5. 

FISHER 
James Mellville, 39. 
Lucy Katherine, 82. 

Fisk, Mrs. Charles A., 50. 
Fleet, Beverly, 2. 
Floyd, John, 52. 
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FLYNT 
Byrdie., 52. 
Dee., 52. 
Edwin, 52~ 
Elizabeth., 52. 
Leonidas., 52. 
Lonnie Bob., 52. 
Lucy, 52. 
Margaret, 52. 
Odie, 52. 
Sarah Shields, 52., 53. 

Ford, Mildred, 36. 

FOSTER 
Arthur Harlan, 81. 
Burnetta Gaynes., 79. 
Edwin., 81. 
Fernella, 81. 
Jrunes Harlan, 81. 
James Harlan, Jr., 81. 
James Harvey, 79. 
James Lewis, 81. 
Laura Andrews., 79. 
Loula Cook, 81. 
Lou Ellen, 81. 
May Belle, 81. 
Nancy Maude., 40. 
Verna Henrie., 81. 
Virginia., SL 
Walter Wayne, 81. 

FOi>TLER 
Burnetta, 74. 
Martha., 57. 

Frye, Sally., 76. 

Garney, Avis, 3. 
Gayle, }~s. Grace Warren, 37. 

GEE 
Elizabeth, 24. 
Jeremiah, 31. 
Jones, 32. 
Lewis, 32, 34. 
Neavil, 31. 
Sally, 11. 

GENTRY 
Bar bar a Wayne, 40. 
Linda Anne , 40. 
1Jilliam Wayne., 40. 

Gibbs, Charlotte, 85. 
Gilmer, Gen. J.F • ., 23. 
Goben, E.rnma Louella, 61. 

GOINS 
Glaren ce, 51. 
Jo v., 51. 

GOULD 
Mae Belle., 81. 
O.M"., 81. 

GREENE 
Lt. Col. Grief, 41. 
Gen. Nathaniel., 1h. 

Gwyn, Garnet, 87e 

HAIIEY 
Dorothy Lucas., 26., 32. 
Emily Lucas, 32,, 
~Iartha Caroline, 32. 
Meredith, 32, 33. 
Thomas Benjamin., 32. 
Varney Philip, 32. 

Haizlip, Fredrika, 61. 

HANKWITZ 
Dorothy, 90. 
Mathilda, 90. 
Dr• Paul, 90 e 

HARRISON 
Dr. Eldon o., 620 
Gregory Scott, 62. 
Glen Eldon, 62. 
Lisa De Anne, 620 
Shannon Wade, 62. 

HAWTHORNE 
Anna Florence, 39. 
Fayette, 39. 
Henry, 39. 
John M., 39 .. 
Mar gar et, 39. 
Nellie, 390 
Susie Blackwell, 390 
Thurman Thweatt, 39. 

Hay, Kenneth M~, 77. 
Herring, Nina, 39. 

HERVEY 
Douglass, So. 
Edith Louise, 79. 
Elmer Francis, 80. 
George, 790 
George Dewayne, SO. 
George Henry, 79e 
Joel Lee, So. 
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HERVEY 
Ken Scott, Bo. 
Michael ·wayne, BO. 
Norma Jean, Bo. 
Richard Allen, SO. 
Tena, 80. 
Terra, Bo. 
Theodore R., 80. 
Treasure Fay, 79. 
Walter Wayne, So. 

HILBURN 
Caroline Spencer, 82. 
Herbert Spencer, Jr., 82. 
Herbert Spencer, III, 82. 
Inez Andrews, 82. 
Ted Andrews, 82. 

Hobson, Lt., 14 • 
. Holder, Rugh Fay., 96. 

HOLECKO 
Eddie, 80. 
Mary, So. 
Louise, So. 
Norma Jean, 80. 

HOLMES 
n.s., 38. 
Harry Randolph, 38. 
Mary Lou, 3.S. 
Sallie Lou, 38. 

Hubbard, Linda Jean, 52. 
Hunger, Irene, 86. 

HURT 
Emma Patricia, 86. 
J.M., 74. 
James Robert, 86. 
Keith O'Brien, 86. 

JACKSON 
Bessie, 85. 
Betty Jean, 85. 
Ernest Wilton, 85. 
Gloria Nell, 85. 

JEtcJELL 
Frances, 78. 
Lucy, 77. 
Mary Effie, 77. 
George Thomas, 77. 
Joseph Eugene, 78. 

Johns, Elizabeth, 55. 

JOHNSON 
Gen. Albert Sidney, 68. 
Jerry Janice, 81. 

JONES 
Aurelia, 81. 
G.u., 28, 29. 

KELLY 
John Vincent, 87. 
John Vincent, Jr., 87 
John Vincent, III, 87. 
Joanne, 87 .. 
Nancy Frances, 87. 
Patrick Brian, 87. 

KEY 
George, 77. 
Lucy Jewell; 77~ 
Miles, 78. 

KING 
Anderson, 47, 58, 59. 
Anna Elizabeth, 32, 35. 
Earl, 59 •. 
Edgar, 58. 
Jim, 51. 
James Hugh, 33. 
Lucas Almeda, 33. 
Lulu Belle, 33, 58, 59. 
Mary (Mollie), 49, 53. 
Mary Elizabeth, 33, 59. 
Mary Lucas, SB • 
Nannie L • ., 58. 
Oscar, 59. 
Robert Elmer, 58. 
Robert H., 33, 58, 59. 
Robert Nathan, 32. 
R. Varney, 58. 
Capt. Richard, 71. 
Rufus A .. , 58. 
Sam c .. , 58. 
Walter Meredith, 32. 
Wm. M., 32. 
Wm. o., 32. 
Willie, 58. 

Kirkpatrick, Lucy, So. 
Kitch, Sam, 96. 

IEE, Gen. Robert E., 23. 

LEFIER 
Barbara Andrews, 90. 
Catherine Diane, 91. 
David Alan, 91. 
Edgar, 90. 
Gregory, 91. 
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I.EFLER (continued) 
Irene Marsh, 90. 
Marsh E., 90. 
Mary Marsha, 90. 
Michael Joseph, 91. 
Steven Andrews, 91. 

LEWIS 
Carl Thad, 82 • 
Don, 82. 
Elam, 82,, 
Roscoe Vernon, 82. 
Sue Beth, 82. 
Ted Fisher, 82. 
Vernon, 82. 
Zenna Pearl, 82. 

Livesay, Mary, 39. 

LONG 
Lala, 64, 69, 70, 71. 
Sam Bell Maxey, 64, 71. 

LIGHTFOOT 
Dora, 71, 72. 
Henry, 71. 
Henry w., 73. 
Martha, 72. 
Mary, 72. 
Sallie Lee., 70. 
Thomas, 72. 

Lynch, Jack, 52. 

Malear, Joanne, 87. 
Malone, Rebecca;31. 

MARTIN 
Bettye Joyce, 86. 
Harold Ray, 86. 
Teresa, 86. 

Maloch, Mary Rosalba, 57. 
Marsh, Yrl.ldred, 82. 

MAXEY 
Edward, 65, 66. 
Elizabeth, 64, 65, 66. 
Elizabeth Fuqua, 65, 66. 
Henry P., 66. 
James i:,r., 66. 
Joel, 66. 
John, 64, 66, 72. 
Joshua, 66. 
Marilda Cass Denton, 46. 
Mary Andrews, 72. 
Mary Williams, 30, 41, 42, 
43, 44, 45., 46. 

MAXEY ( continued) 
Nancy Williams, 42, 66, 72. 
Nathaniel, 64, 65. 
Radford, 65, 66e 
Rice, 44, 57, 66. 
Robert, 66,, 
Sampson, 65. 
Samuel Bell, 44, 45, 46, 50, 
51, 55, 57, 58, 64, 66, 67, 
68, 69, 70, 71, 75. 
Susannah, 64, 65. 
Sylvanus, 64, 65e 

JvT.AY 
Elizabeth, 87• 
Hazel, 87., 
Robert Walter, 87e 

EC DANIEL 
Johnny Faye, 82., 
Peggy Joyce, 82. 

MC LEMORE 
Christine, 55, 56. 
Holly Arterberry, 55, 56. 
Joe Edward, 56. 
w. c.$ 55. 

Mc Murry, Mary Croft, 93. 
Milam,. Laura, 84. 
Mode, Greta Joyce, 59. 
Monroe, Fred, 61. 
Moody, Arthur Maxey, 39. 

MONTGOMERY 
Harry Sheffie, 36. 
Harry Sheffie, Jr,., 36,, 
Ruby Saunders, 19, 23, 36. 

MOORE 
Alva Jacob, 52~ 
Caroline, 78. 
Joseph Burnsides, 78e 
Lucy Andrews, 78. 
Mary Jane, 78,, 

MORGAN 
Colonel, 13. 
General, 16" 
G,,W., 72. 
J.B.,, 48. 
Martha Lightfoot, 738 

NASH, Sheriff John, 2. 

NELLIS 
Bill, 80. 
Cyndy, 80,, 
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NELLIS (continued) 
John, So. 

NEISON 
Betty Jean, 86. 
James Tyler., 86. 
Mamie Andrews, 86. 

Newman, Beulah, 80. 

O'BRIEN 
Bennie Ewing., 86. 
Emma Patricia., 86. 
Leta Andrews., 86. 

O'CONNOR 
Daniel Flurry., 91 
Margaret, 91. 
Marjorie, 91. 

OGLESBY 
1.w • ., 5o, 57, 75. 
Martha Fowler, 57, 74, 75, 76. 

Oslin, Martha Jane, 34. 

OZLDJ 
Emma, 36, 37. 
Perry Andrews., 37. 
Dr. Robert Lucas, 37. 
Dr. Hm. Thomas, 37. 

PACE 
John R., 78. 
Frances Jewell, 78. 

PALK 
Albert Edwin, So. 
Albert Henry, 80. 
Anna, 80. 
Annette., 79. 
Bertha, 79. 
Beth, Bo. 
Betty Jo, So. 
Burnetta Foster, So. 
Cyndy, 80. 
Edwin, 79. 
Randy., So. 
W'm. James, So. 
Wm. James., Jr., 80. 

PATILID 
Ann, 65. 
James, 65. 
Mary., 65. 

Patton, Joan, 79. 

Paulette, Sallie Lou., 38. 
Peacock, Geraldine, 86. 
Peagram., Capt. George, 5. 
Perry, Mitchel, 87. 
Pickens, Emma Josephine., 51. 

PICKETT 
Anna Elizabeth, 40. 
Charles Bramel, 40. 

PIATT 
Earl Taylor., 52. 
Ina Margaret., 52. 

Plumbo, ~mriel., 80. 

PLYIER 
Becky, 85. 
Dr. Charles Grady., 85. 
Hollie,Andrews, 85. 
Luther Grady., 85. 
Randy, 85. 

POGUE 
John L., 56. 
Savannah, 56. 

Probst, Donald Edw., 38. 
Pullen, Martha (Mattie)., 92. 

Ragsdale., Mary Frances., 35a 
Ray's Roster, 49. 
Reekes, Thomas E • ., 28., 29. 
Rennie, Elizabeth, 81. 

ROARK 
Billie., 78. 
Lucile., 91. 
Melba Jean., 91. 
Roscoe., 91. 

Rogers, Capt. Peter, 13. 

ROLLINS 
Linda, 87. 
Mark, 87. 
Ray, 87. 

Rowland, Bernice, 85. 
Rucker, Emma, 85. 
Russell, Ella, 81. 

SAUNDERS 
Clyde, 36. 
C]yde, Jr. 36. 
David Ford, 36. 
Gilbert Asa, 35. 
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SAUNDERS (continued) 
James Archer, 35, 37. 
James Sidney, 36. 
Kathleen, 36. 
Lucy, 35. 
Luther, 36. 
Mildred Ford, 36. 
Nancye, 36. 
Robert, 36. 
Ruby, 35. 
Thomas Archer, 36. 
Wm. Douglass, 36. 

SCOTT 
Louise, 78, 82. 
Stephen H., i..J.4. 

Seale, Ruth, 51. 
Shumate, Claude c., 61. 

SHURTIEFF 
Betty Jean, 85. 
Jerry Lloyd, 85. 
Lloyd Alton, 85. 
Michael Jackson, 85. 

Singleton, Frances, 84. 
Smart,Jacquelyn, 61. 

SMITH 
Della, 36. 
Lou Ellen, 81. 
Mrs. 1J. s., 35. 

STANDIFER 
Debbie, 83. 
Frank Douglass, 83. 
Iris Lavelle, 83. 
Janey, 83. 
Kay, 83. 
Pamela, 83. 
Ralph Douglas, 83. 

Steedman, Judge S.D., 48 • 
Stewart, Virginia, 80. 
Stiles, Dorothy Phelps, 40. 

STONE 
David Lloyd, 79. 
John Perry, 79. 
Lloyd, 79. 
Madeline Fay, 79. 
Martin Bradley, 79. 
Samuel, 28~ 

Street, Capt. Anthony, 14, 72. 
Sutton, Lucy Katherine, 82. 

TANNER 
Nancy, 24. 
Richard, 24 .. 

Tarleton, Britisher, 17. 

TARUT 
Gladys Andrews, 78. 
Jack Fant, 78. 
Jack Fant, Jr., 78~ 
Richard Lewis, 78. 

Taylor, Clifford A , , 61. 
Templeton, Louise, 83. 

THO!VTAS 
Barbara Anne, 89~ 
Georgia Anne, 89. 
Mabel Andrews, 89., 
Richard Andrews, 89. 
Terry William, 89. 
Will Howard, 89. 
Will Howard, Jr., 89 

THOMASSON 
Claudia, 38. 
Elizabeth Sue, 38. 
Jean, 38. 
M.L., 38. 

Thomson, Alice, 78. 

THOMPSON 
F., 52. 
Jtrrtle, 80. 

Thornton, Monte Zuma, 56. 
Tilghman, Lt. Col. Tench, l7e 

TINDALL 
Rachel, 9,, 
Thomas, 9~ 

Trobaugh, Mahala Elizabeth, 888 

VAN SICKIE 
Barbara, 86. 
Don, 86~ 
Katherine, 86., 
Tichia, 86., 

VASSAR 
Anna Elizebeth, 40~ 
Anna Sue, 40 • 
Barbara Stiles, 40. 
Edith Atkinson, 40e 
Char]e s Edward, 40 .. 
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VASSAR (continued) 
Cynthia Moorefield., 4o. 
Joan Atkinson., 40. 
John Randolph., 40. 
Lois Randolph., 40. 
Mary Elizabeth., 40 
Os car Levi., 40. 
Reginald Levi., 40. 

VAUGHN 
Katherine., 40. 
Wm. Pascal, 40,. 

VEAZEY 
Christine., 55., 56. 
G.E., 56. 
G.W., 56., 
John Thomas, 56., 

· iTOLBERDING 
Cleo Eva, Bo. 
Earl w., 81 
Gary Wesley, 81. 
John Wesley, 81. 

WALKER 
Hezzie Paulett, 40. 
Randolph Paulett, 40. 
Rosemarie., 40. 

WARREN 
Deloney, 39. 
Earle, 39. 
Ethel Harw-ell, 36. 
Gilbert, 19. 
Howard, 39. 
John J., 39. 
Sam M., 39. 
Winston, 39. 

Watkins, Bettie Mae, 39. 
Webb, Wm. E., 88. 

WEST 
Cleo Eva, 81. 
Eldon, 81. 
Verna, 81. 

Wheatley., Mrs. Ray, 50 
Wheeler, Roberta, 61. 
W'iard, Wilma Marie., 84. 

'WILLIAMS 
Capt., 1. 
James., 65. 

Winn, Fern., 84. 
Hright, Sarah, 61. 
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